
 

 
Person cyswllt:  Neil Barnett, Cynghorydd Craffu 
Ffôn:  01633 656656 
E-bost:Scrutiny@newport.gov.uk 
Dyddiad cyhoeddi: Dydd Mercher, 29 Tachwedd 2023 
 

Agenda 
Pwyllgor Craffu ar Berfformiad – Partneriaethau 
 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 6 Rhagfyr 2023 
 
Amser: 5.00 pm 
 
Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - Canolfan Ddinesig 
 
At: Cynghorwyr: E Stowell-Corten (Cadeirydd), C Baker-Westhead, B Davies, P Drewett, 

F Hussain, J Jones, A Morris, M Pimm, A Screen and K Whitehead 
 
 
 
Eitem  Wardiau 

Dan Sylw 
  

1   Ymddiheuriadau  F_PR 
 

 
 
2   Datganiadau o ddiddordeb  F_PR 

 
 

 
3   Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Diwethaf  F_PR 

 
 

 
4   Strategaeth Ranbarthol Trais yn erbyn Menywod, Cam-drin Domestig 

a Thrais Rhywiol (VAWDASV) 2023-2027  F_PR 
 

 

 
5   Casgliad Adroddiadau Pwyllgorau  F_PR 

Following the completion of the Committee reports, the Committee will 
be asked to formalise its conclusions, recommendations and 
comments on previous items for actioning.  
  
 

 

 
6   Adroddiad Cynghorydd Craffu  F_PR 

a)      Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 1) 

b)      Actions Plan (Appendix 2) 

  

 

 

 
7   Live Event  F_PR 

To watch the live meeting please click here 
 

 

 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OTgxN2M0YmMtYTZiNy00YzMxLWFjOTQtZDg4OWViZGQ5MTc2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%222c4d0079-c52c-4bb3-b3ca-d8eaf1b6b7d5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22e413fd17-e0b4-4ed1-a46d-82589500a2bd%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn



This document is available in welsh / Mae’s ffurflen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

Minutes 
Performance Scrutiny Committee - Partnerships 
 
Date: 8 November 2023 
 
Time: 5.00 pm 
 
Present: Councillors E Stowell-Corten (Chair), B Davies, P Drewett, F Hussain, M Pimm, 

A Screen and K Whitehead 
 

In Attendance: Councillor Laura Lacey (Cabinet Member for Infrastructure), Rhys Cornwall 
(Strategic Director – Transformation and Corporate Centre, Newport City 
Council), Tracy McKim (Head of People, Policy and Transformation), Lyndon 
Watkins (Managing Director for Newport Norse), Mark McSweeney (Director – 
Professional and Contract Services, Newport Norse), Sarah Davies (Head of 
Asset Management and Valuation, Newport Norse), Janice Dent (Policy and 
Partnership Manager), Helen Gordon (Senior Policy and Partnership Officer, Dr 
Carl Williams – Local Policing Area Commander, Chief Superintendent – Gwent 
Police (Co-Chair), Neil Barnett (Scrutiny Adviser) and Simon Richards 
(Governance Officer) 

 
Apologies: Councillors C Baker-Westhead, J Jones and A Morris 
 
 
 
1 Declarations of Interest  

 
None. 
 

2 Minutes of the previous meetings held on 4th October 2023 and 10th October 2023  
 
The Minutes of the previous meetings held on 4th and 10th October 2023 were held as a true 
record. 
  
 

3 Norse Joint Venture Partnership - Strategy and Performance Review  
 
Invitees: 

-        Rhys Cornwall – Strategic Director – Transformation and Corporate Centre, 
Newport City Council 

-        Tracy McKim – Head of People, Policy and Transformation 
-        Lyndon Watkins – Managing Director for Newport Norse 
-        Mark McSweeney – Director – Professional and Contract Services, Newport 

Norse 
-        Sarah Davies – Head of Asset Management and Valuation, Newport Norse 
-        Councillor Laura Lacey – Cabinet Member for Infrastructure 

  
The Managing Director for Newport Norse gave an overview of the report. 
  
The following was discussed: 

Tudalen 3

Eitem Agenda 3



 

• The Committee enquired about the number of full-time employees employed from 
Newport versus the Cardiff Capital Region and whether these had been double 
counted. The Director – Professional and Contract Services, Newport Norse informed 
the Committee that they have 147 employees from Newport and 199 from the Cardiff 
Capital Region. The Committee requested clarification of these figures. 

• The Committee noted the impressive increase of turnover in the last year and queried 
how it affects large projects like Bassaleg School. The Managing Director for Newport 
Norse informed the Committee that only professional services are provided for 
Bassaleg School, which helped the turnover, but it is not the main driver for turnover. 
The Managing Director also noted that they have had projects where they have acted 
as the main contractor, which produced larger turnover.  

• The Committee noted that the rebate received by Newport City Council (NCC) was 
around £700,000 and asked how it compared to the rebate received by Norse. The 
Managing Director explained that under the old model, Norse Group received the first 
£156,000 and the residual was split 50:50. Under the contract extension, NCC now 
receives the first £156,000, and Norse Group and NCC split the residual 50:50, which 
is approximately £800,000.  

• The Committee highlighted that the breakdown of diversity and equality data 
previously requested was not included in the report. The Managing Director 
apologized and assured the Committee that this data can be included in the report 
going forward. The Managing Director also informed the Committee that their current 
workforce is around 300-320 and is predominantly female. They also noted that over 
the last year, most new hires had been female, however the company was not as 
diverse with regards to  other characteristics.  

• The Committee requested to see data on the gender pay gap as it was discussed in 
the previous Committee last year. The Managing Director informed the Committee 
that this information was captured approximately 2-3 years ago; however, they were 
unsure what data was included due to there being two different companies within the 
group at that time. The Managing Director agreed to check this information and 
provide to the Committee.  

• The Committee highlighted the positive aspect that staff were getting paid the Real 
Living Wage as specified by the Living Wage Foundation. The Managing Director 
informed the Committee that it was a condition of the original contract set out with 
Newport City Council and noted that if the pay was benchmarked, it would be higher 
than similar Local Authorities.  

• The Committee asked how feedback is captured. The Managing Director informed the 
Committee that this was done in two ways. Firstly, when operational staff undertake 
work, they have a feedback mechanism on their handheld devices that capture client 
feedback immediately, followed up with a survey. There is also an annual survey that 
takes place within schools and other Council premises. The Managing Director 
assured the Committee that all complaints are investigated by a member of staff who 
is independent from the operation, and an action plan is put in place if required..  

• The Committee were pleased to hear that paper-based feedback forms were also 
provided as it reached residents who were not online but still use Norse services. The 
Managing Director informed the Committee that reward and recognition ceremonies 
were held quarterly, and colleagues were presented with certificates and a voucher 
for good feedback. They also noted that they try to match up with visits from the Chief 
Operating Officer, which helped keep morale high and encouraged staff to do good 
work.  

Tudalen 4



 

• The Committee asked whether apprenticeships were done through the Job Centre. 
The Managing Director informed the Committee that regular sessions were carried 
out with the Job Centre and schools to get the very best people. They also 
highlighted a scheme where Norse staff attended pupil forums in schools and 
targeted students currently struggling with their GCSEs to carry out work experience 
1-2 days a week, with a view to providing an apprenticeship at the end. This scheme 
had proved to be very successful.    

• The Committee asked what apprenticeships are available. The Director for 
Professional and Contract Services informed the Committee that they offer 
apprenticeships in Electrical and Mechanical teams and currently have 4 
apprenticeships running. The Managing Director also highlighted that they have an 
office apprentice and recruit using different schemes, not just relying on the 
apprenticeship scheme. They noted that one of the limitations on the scheme is 
placing the apprentice with someone who has the time to tutor them.  

• The Committee noted that in the report, turnover is approximately £25 million and 
asked how much inflation had impacted that turnover. The Managing Director 
explained that inflation in construction was around 10%, which has had a significant 
impact. They also mentioned that there had been a fluctuation in inflation and 
demand for building materials. The Managing Director noted that while inflation was a 
factor, the majority of the turnover is from actual work as the demand from schools 
had increased.  

• The Committee asked how many full-time and part-time staff are currently in post. 
The Managing Director explained that they currently have around 320 staff, with 
around 150 of those being part-time. The Committee also asked whether staff have 
had pay increases in line with inflation, and the Director for Professional and Contract 
Services explained that employees get a pay rise agreed and backdated the same as 
Council employees.  

• The Committee stated that Newport City Council used to manage their own assets 
and the assets of other Local Authorities before it was tendered out to Newport 
Norse. The Managing Director stated that the partnership with Newport City Council 
had been a Joint Venture since 2014. They manage the assets on behalf of Newport 
City Council and provide services to other Local Authorities where a profit is made, 
which comes back into the Joint Venture. The Managing Director explained that if you 
look at £1.5 million profit on a £25 million turnover, it is about 6%, with 3% going back 
to Newport City Council, which is lower than any normal commercial arrangement.  

• The Committee enquired how Newport Norse's environmental practices align with 
Newport City Council's ambitions and environmental practices as they could not find 
any net-zero policies in the report. The Director of Professional and Contract Services 
explained that they were audited on their environmental standard and were ISO 
accredited. They highlighted that most of the subcontractors they employ were small 
businesses in the locality. The Managing Director also noted that they were gradually 
changing their fleet of vans as leases came to an end, but there was currently up to 
an 18-month waiting period for electric vans. They noted that regular Joint Venture 
meetings take place with Norse colleagues, and climate change is on the agenda, 
with Norse colleagues involved in Newport City Council's climate change 
workstreams.  

• The Committee asked whether any schools or Council buildings had been impacted 
by Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated Concrete (RAAC). The Director of Professional 
and Contract Services informed the Committee that their local building surveying 
team were able to survey the entire school estate and react quickly. Only one school 

Tudalen 5



 

was found to have RAAC which was outside of the parameters set by the Welsh 
Government and the school reopened last week. The Managing Director assured the 
Committee that risk was low level as RAAC is normally found in roof structures, 
however it wasn’t on this occasion and was supported by steel supports. The 
Managing Director emphasised that a lot more work was being undertaken to future-
proof schools.  

• The Committee asked whether liaisons have taken place with school governors. The 
Director of Professional and Contract Services informed the Committee that an 
annual Governors’ presentation took place last month. Regular meetings also took 
place with headteachers, however, due to action short of strike, these had been 
suspended recently. The Committee queried whether these presentations have been 
given to governing bodies rather than individual schools governors. The Director 
explained that they did not typically attend individual school governors’ meetings, but 
would be happy to do so if invited.  

• The Committee asked for examples of the £5000 gifts in kind noted in the report. The 
Managing Director explained that the Group had a scheme where if their staff are 
involved in community organisations, there are sponsorships given out at times. The 
Director of Professional and Contract Services explained that the £5000 in the report 
is related specifically to the Bassaleg School construction contract. The Managing 
Director also stated that donations are made to St David's Hospice, and they support 
staff taking part in an annual bike ride along with other sponsorship events.  

• The Committee noted that the report mentioned the number of volunteering hours 
provided to support local community projects and asked whether this is based on the 
employee's rate of pay. The Managing Director explained that there are a number of 
projects they have done, and there is sometimes a gap between the aspirations of the 
end-user and what the funds will allow, so they have allowed staff volunteer hours. 
The Committee noted that it would be useful to see examples of the volunteer work 
undertaken as last year the importance of community work was mentioned, but the 
information provided was vague. 

• The Committee asked how many people have been employed from the locality to 
carry out the St Andrew’s School and Transporter Bridge projects. The Director of 
Professional and Contract Services advised that the KPIs on that will be included in 
next year’s report as they ongoing projects. The Head of People, Policy and 
Transformation informed Committee that Norse have regularly attended Cabinet 
Meetings.   

  
The Committee thanked the officers for attending. 
  
Conclusions 

• The Committee noted that diversity and equality data that was requested during the 
previous committee meeting is currently missing from the report. The Committee 
requested to receive additional equality data, including information on age, ethnicity 
and workforce composition within the organisation. 

  
• The Committee was pleased to learn that the partnership offers paper-based 

feedback options for service users, recognising that some individuals prefer this 
method over online feedback or are unable to use online resources. Members also 
appreciated Norse's provision of award and recognition events for staff, which 
contribute to maintaining high morale. 

Tudalen 6



 

  
• Members sought clarification regarding the National TOM's Wales reference NTW1 - 

the number of direct employees (FTE) hired or retained within the NCC 
Boundary. While it was stated that 80% of employees were Newport residents, 
Members discussed that the figure would actually be less than half (147 out of 346), 
approximately 43%. Members also requested an updated print version reflecting the 
correct amount. 

  
• Members noted that the report's information on community work was vague. They 

requested specific examples of community work undertaken and instances where 
staff have engaged in volunteer work. 

  
 

4 Safer Newport Draft Strategic Needs Assessment 2023  
 
Invitees: 

-        Rhys Cornwall – Strategic Director – Transformation and Corporate 
-        Janice Dent – Policy and Partnership Manager 
-        Helen Gordon – Senior Policy and Partnership Officer 
-        Rhian Tilley – Partnership Officer 
-        Dr Carl Williams – Local Policing Area Commander, Chief Superintendent – 

Gwent Police (Co-Chair) 
  
The Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate gave an overview of the report. The 
Policy and Partnership Manager presented the report to the Committee. The Senior Policy 
and Partnership Officer highlighted the important points within the report.  
The following was discussed: 
  

• The Committee appreciated the positive aspect of the draft report regarding 
Community Cohesion, acknowledging that it is a work in progress. 

  
• The Committee expressed concern about the omission of rural areas, particularly 

Newport East and Newport West, in the report. The Policy and Partnership Manager 
assured the Committee that efforts had been made to engage with residents in rural 
areas and gather relevant information. They also mentioned meeting with the 
Community Council Liaison Committee. The Strategic Director emphasised the 
significance of the report reaching the Scrutiny Committee, highlighting that it is 
important to consider the impact on residents rather than solely comparing crime 
levels between the city centre and rural areas. 

• The Committee commended the report's comprehensiveness and the use of graphs 
to present feedback in a more visual and understandable format. The Policy and 
Partnership Manager explained that extensive research was conducted on other 
Strategic Needs Reports to determine the best way to present data. 

• The Committee enquired about whether the issues raised by residents in their 
feedback have been addressed. The Strategic Director explained that there are 
currently six priority areas in the ongoing work, and responsiveness to emerging 
themes is crucial. Feedback will be incorporated into the current work being 
undertaken, and there is a close working relationship between Gwent Police and 
Newport City Council. 

Tudalen 7



 

• The Committee noted that residents have expressed concerns about the time it takes 
to resolve issues. The Strategic Director clarified that the time required to address 
issues depends on the nature of the problem. Legal processes must be followed for 
issues related to premises. The Committee acknowledged the difficulty in conveying 
this to residents. The Policy and Partnership Manager mentioned the contextual 
safeguarding approach, which involved considering wider determinants and risk 
factors and exploring alternative interventions beyond making arrests to change 
behaviours. 

• The Committee suggested that ward councillors provide feedback and solutions to 
address problem areas specific to their wards. The Strategic Director agreed that 
engagement with ward councillors is a good idea, and the data can be analysed to 
create an action plan. 

• The Committee discussed the increase in modern-day slavery shown in the report 
and its possible causes. The Strategic Director explained that several factors 
contribute to this issue, including Newport's transient population, location as an 
asylum dispersal area, additional resources dedicated to combating modern-day 
slavery, and an increase in reporting. Understanding the reasons behind the increase 
is important, rather than focusing solely on figures. 

• The Committee noted that Newport is a unique city in Wales and proposed finding 
other cities in the UK with similar characteristics to assess whether the issues faced 
by Newport were unique or common. The Strategic Director informed the Committee 
that such comparisons had been made, and Newport is not experiencing anything 
that is not a national issue. Strategies had been shared with cities of similar size and 
facing similar challenges. The Local Policing Area Commander mentioned the work 
done to promote the importance of reporting and the analysis of demographics and 
strategies of other forces with a similar makeup. They cited Cleveland as an example 
of an area that has been examined for comparable crime types and effective 
interventions. 

• The Committee highlighted the presence of anti-social behaviour in both the city 
centre and estates and expressed the view that engagement, particularly through 
social media, was crucial. The Strategic Director assured the Committee that 
addressing anti-social behaviour was a top priority, and cost analysis was being 
conducted to determine the most effective approach. Efforts were being made to 
minimise the loss of police officers from the city centre through triaging measures 
during peak nighttime hours. 

• The Committee raised concerns about reaching communities with language barriers 
during consultations. The Senior Policy and Partnership Officer explained that 
bilingual surveys had been conducted, but there has been limited outreach in 
languages other than English and Welsh. However, the consultation process could be 
adapted to include other languages as well. 

• The Committee discussed the emerging theme of e-bikes and e-scooters being 
misused on active travel routes and the challenges faced by the Police and Newport 
City Council in addressing this issue. The Chair informed the Committee that there 
was currently no imminent legislation specifically addressing this issue. The Local 
Policing Area Commander highlighted the difficulty of dealing with this issue, not only 
in Newport but in other areas as well. The Police had seized over 100 e-bikes and 
scooters in Gwent this year and worked with various partners to prevent misuse. The 
Committee suggested that clear legislation and education on the legality and 
purchase of e-bikes and scooters would be helpful. The Policy and Partnership 

Tudalen 8



 

Manager noted ongoing efforts to educate the public on the legality of these vehicles 
and to provide guidance to parents regarding their purchase. 

• The Committee emphasised that not all users of e-bikes and scooters were criminals. 
They mentioned that as 70% of Newport is rural, it is important to provide areas for 
young people to use these bikes. The Committee suggested that proceeds of crime 
could be used for this purpose. 

• The Committee proposed using empty properties in the city centre as triage centres 
on busy days. The Strategic Director mentioned the existence of a Safer City Centre 
Group, which was considering this idea. Funding from the Home Office has facilitated 
the establishment of staff and resources for this purpose, and information would be 
circulated. However, some preparatory work needed to be done before setting up the 
triage centre. The Policy and Partnership Manager offered to attend ward meetings if 
required. 

  
The Committee thanked officers for attending. 
  
Conclusions 

• Members praised the comprehensive report, particularly the helpfulness of the 
feedback graphs included in the draft. They appreciated the use of graphs over 
figures, as it improved visibility and ease of understanding. 

  
• Members highlighted the absence of mention of rural areas within the draft report and 

noted that the types of antisocial behaviour in rural communities can differ from what 
is observed within the city centre. Members would like to see more inclusion of rural 
areas in the final version of the report. 
  

• The Committee requested to receive the Police report that was conducted about the 
Cleveland-area city, which offers a comparison to Newport. 

  
• The Committee requested to receive the latest version of the Safer Newport report.  

  
• The Committee observed that the consultation was currently available only in English 

and Welsh. Members requested the translation of the consultation into additional 
languages, such as Urdu and Arabic. They also enquired about the plans to engage 
with harder-to-reach populations in Newport and requested that further consideration 
be given to meaningful engagement with those communities.  

  
• Members discussed the anonymous reporting of anti-social behaviour by residents 

and expressed interest in receiving figures on the number of anonymous reports 
received by Police. 

  
 

5 Scrutiny Adviser Reports  
 
Invitee: 

-          Neil Barnett – Scrutiny Adviser 
  

a)    Forward Work Programme Update 
  
The Scrutiny Adviser presented the Forward Work Programme, and informed the Committee 
of the topics due to be discussed at the next two committee meetings: 
  

Tudalen 9



 

Wednesday 6th December, the agenda item; 
• Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) 

  
Wednesday 7th February 2024, the agenda items; 

• Area Planning Board (Substance Misuse)  

• Sencom Regional Support Services for Schools 
  
Councillor Pimm gave his apologies for the December meeting. 
  

a)    Action Sheet 
  

The Scrutiny Adviser presented the action sheet to the Committee. It was advised that Flood 
Risk Strategy was being renewed in February 2024 and would be discussed at the 
Performance Scrutiny Committee – Place and Corporate. The Scrutiny and Governance 
Team would look to arrange training for all Member in relation to flood risk in the city. 
  

 
The meeting terminated at 7.03 pm 
 

Tudalen 10



Scrutiny Report 
Performance Scrutiny Committee - Partnerships 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  6th December 2023 
 
Subject Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence (VAWDASV) Regional Strategy 2023-2027 
 
Author  Scrutiny Adviser  
 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Area / Role / Subject 
 

 
Natalie Poyner 
 

 
Head of Children Services 

 
Finn Madell 
 
Amy Thomas 

 
Head of Corporate Safeguarding 
 
VAWDASV Regional Lead Advisor  
 

 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked to 

1. Review the Gwent VAWDASV Regional Strategy 2023-2027, with a focus on 
pages 24 to 31, and endorse its content

2. Consider the role of the Committee and all Elected Members in the promotion and 
awareness raising of VAWDASV within Council corporate business and community  
work 

3. Determine if it wishes to make any comment / recommendations to Cabinet 
regarding the report and how the Council is incorporating its VAWDASV 
requirements and obligations under the Act

Tudalen 11

Eitem Agenda 4



2 Context 
 

Background  
 
2.1 Section 5 of the Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 

2015 places a duty on Local Authorities and Local Health Boards to jointly prepare a strategy (“a 
local strategy”) for the local authority’s area. The statutory responsibilities under the VAWDASV 
(Wales) Act 2015 are discharged through the VAWDASV Partnership Board and annual reporting 
against the regional strategy and delivery plan are submitted into Gwent Public Services Boards. 

 
2.2 This Strategy builds on the Gwent VAWDASV Strategy 2018-2023 which set out the regional 

integrated approach to stop violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence and to 
improve the health and wellbeing of individuals and families affected by abuse, whilst also 
holding to account those who perpetrate such abuse. This Strategy will set out how we are 
looking at achieving this vision across Gwent, in the prevention of VAWDASV, protection from 
VAWDASV and support for those impacted by VAWDASV. It will show that across Gwent, 
partners, stakeholders and those with lived experience of VAWDASV are committed to 
collaborative working and joined up approaches to tackle issues of abuse and violence. 

 
2.3 Through a structure of working groups the VAWDASV Partnership Board, ensures that the priorities 

identified in the regional Strategy translate into actions that can make a real difference to the well-
being and safety of people living in Newport and across Gwent, both now and in the future. 

 
2.4       Newport City Council are the host for the regional VAWDASV team. Newport Council Officers are 

involved in all the working groups that report into the VAWDASV Board, as listed below: 
 

• Gwent VAWDASV Strategic Delivery Group 
• Gwent Domestic Homicide Review (DHR) Planning Group 
• Gwent VAWDASV Campaign, Communications and Engagement Group 
• Gwent VAWDASV Whole Education Approach Group 
• Gwent VAWDASV Commissioning Group 
• Gwent MARAC Steering Group  
• Gwent VAWDASV Tackling Perpetration Group 
• Gwent VAWDASV Training Subgroup 

 
2.4 To strengthen the work of the region and beyond, Gwent VAWDASV is represented on Welsh 

Government groups including: Whole System Approach Workstream, Children and Young 
Person’s Workstream, Tackling Perpetration Workstream; National Training Framework Ask and 
Act Steering Group; Single Unified Safeguarding Review Steering Group and associated 
subgroups; All Wales Honour Based Abuse Leadership Group; and the VAWDASV 
Communications group.  Three new groups that are in the process of being established: Children 
and Young People Subgroup, Multiple or Co-Occurring Needs Subgroup and the Minority Ethnic 
and Protected Communities Subgroup. All learning from these groups is shared with Board and 
relevant subgroups and provides Gwent with the opportunity to raise any concerns with the 
appropriate members of Welsh Government.    

       
2.5 As Scrutiny is not a decision-making forum, the Scrutiny Committee’s review and subsequent 

comments / recommendations on this matter will be reported to the Cabinet for consideration and 
action.  

 
2.6  As Elected Members, and Scrutiny Members, the Committee has an important role in considering 

the arrangements that the Council has in place as a relevant authority within the VAWDASV Act. 
To ensure the Council is carrying out all key requirements of the Act to ensure citizens affected 
by VAWDASV have services available to them on a local footprint.  

 

Tudalen 12



3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 The following information is attached for the Committees consideration: 
  
 Appendix A - Gwent VAWDASV Regional Strategy 2023-2027 
 

4. Suggested Areas of Focus 
 
 Role of the Committee 
 

  
 
  
 
 
 
 
4.1 Suggested Lines of Enquiry 
  

 The following broad lines of enquiry are following reflection of work undertaken as part of the 
development of the new regional strategy: 

 
4.1.1 Partnership Working: 
 

• Are all agencies and organisations connected to VAWDASV adequately represented 
within the partnership, to support collaboration for a single purpose, joint working and 
tackling issues together? 

• Are there adequate partnership arrangements on both a strategic and operational 
level to implement the requirements of the Act? 

• Is it evident that Newport CC is maximising its potential in respect of partnership 
working to meet its statutory requirements and obligations under the Act?  

 
 
 
 
 

The role of the Committee in considering this report is to:

• Establish if the Strategy effectively sets the priorities and focus areas for the 
next four years to meet needs and have an impact for citizens of Newport

• Establish whether within the Strategy governance arrangements and planned 
workstreams, associated key priorities and themes are appropriately 
addressed and support commitment to addressing VAWDASV with clarity of 
purpose 

• Consider the level of partnership working to effectively improve outcomes for 
Newport citizens affected by, or impacted by VAWDASV

• Consider how the Regional Team can work closely with Members in their roles 
as Councillors and Members of Scrutiny Committees to plan and access 
suitable training pursuant to the statutory National Training Framework 
requirements.

Tudalen 13



4.1.2 Quality and Performance: 
 

• How are the lived experience of survivors represented and embedded within the 
partnership arrangements, and how are their voices used to continuously improve 
services? 

• Have the partnership arrangements that are in place led to service improvement, and 
how is learning from partners shared and embedded across the sector? 

• Are the appropriate governance structures in place, and are they clear and working 
effectively to improve outcomes for Newport citizens?  

 
4.1.3 Practice: 
 

• Are members confident that there is sufficient focus on prevention as well as 
adequate and effective early intervention and prevention services in place to reduce 
problems for the future? 

• Are the appropriate systems and opportunities in place to support the VAWDASV 
workforce in building resilience and developing skills to deliver high quality services? 

• Are appropriate systems in place across NCC to meet statutory requirements, 
including training targets at each level of the National Training Framework?   
 

Section B – Supporting Information 
5 Supporting Information 
 
5.1 The Gwent VAWDASV Strategy has Six Strategic Priorities based on the Welsh Government 

National Strategy.  Key priorities under the new strategy are included within pages 24 to 31 of the 
new strategy. A Gwent VAWDASV Commissioning Board convened in November 2021 with the 
Director of Social Services of Newport Council as Chair, this Board will provide governance and 
oversight and hold all relevant authorities to account against the regional and national strategy 
and Acts.   

 
5.2 2020-21 was an unprecedented year due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, this resulted 

in reduced ability of victims and perpetrators to seek support and necessitated a change in 
practice for all partner organisations.  This is still an issue but has been compounded by the cost 
of living crisis.  

 
5.3 Representatives from NCC and wider Gwent have been instrumental in piloting a new approach 

for Domestic Homicide and other practice reviews, with a senior leader from NCC leading the 
work with Welsh Government on a Single Unified Review Process (SUSR), and piloting 
conducting Domestic Homicide Reviews using the Adult Practice Review methodology.   

 
5.4 Newport Neighbourhood Care Networks led the implementation of the IRISi project across the 

region was agreed with a start date of 2021-22.  This enabled early identification and referral via 
GP practices of domestic abuse. This is now in its third year and is coming to an end in March 
2024. 

 
5.5 824 staff attended Group 1 VAWDASV (e-learning) during 2022-2023 which means NCC have 

trained 75% of their staff in Group 1 since publication of the National Training Framework in 
March 2016. Following lockdown, Face to face Group 2 training continues to be delivered online 
and has seen 78 NCC staff complete the training. Group 6 (senior leaders and Councillors) 
training has also been delivered during 2022-23 with 36 NCC staff completing. 

 
 

Tudalen 14



6 Links to Council Policies and Priorities  
 

• The Gwent VAWDASV Regional Strategy 2023-2027 has links to Well-being Objective 3 – 
Quality Social Care and Community Services of the Corporate Pla7 2022-2026 
Commitments. 

 
 
7 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act  
 
 The Committee’s consideration of the delivery of the VAWDASV Strategy in Newport should 

consider how the Partnership is maximising its contribution to the five ways of working.  The 
following are examples of the types of questions to consider: 

 
5 Ways of Working Types of Questions to consider: 

What long term trends will impact upon the 
delivery of the VAWDASV Priorities? 

Long-term 
The importance of balancing short-term 
needs with the need to safeguard the 
ability to also meet long-term needs. 

 

How will changes in long term needs impact 
upon the delivery of the VAWDASV Priorities in 
the future? 
What issues are facing the Partnership’s 
service users at the moment?  

Prevention  
Prevent problems occurring or getting 

worse. How is the Partnership addressing these 
issues to prevent a future problem? 
Are there any other organisations providing 
similar / complementary services? 

Integration 
Considering how public bodies’ wellbeing 
objectives may impact upon each of the 

well-being goals, on their other 
objectives, or on the objectives of other 

public bodies. 

How does the Partnership’s performance upon 
the delivery of the VAWDASV Priorities impact 
upon the services of other public bodies and 
their objectives? 
Who has the Partnership been working with to 
deliver the VAWDASV Priorities? 

Collaboration  
Acting in collaboration with any other 

person (or different parts of the 
organisation itself). 

How is the Partnership using knowledge / 
information / good practice of others to inform / 
influence delivery of the VAWDASV Priorities? 
How has the Partnership sought the views of 
those who are impacted by the delivery of the 
VAWDASV Priorities? 

Involvement 
The importance of involving people with 
an interest in achieving the well-being 
goals, and ensuring that those people 
reflect the diversity of the area which the 
body serves. 

How has the Partnership taken into account 
diverse communities in decision making?  

 
 
 
 
8. Background Papers 
 

Include all additional documents that are referenced in the report, and those that you have used 
as background reading. Hyperlink to online versions of them if available.  
 
• The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)  
• Corporate Plan 2022-2027 

 
 

 
Report Completed: 6th December 2023 

Tudalen 15

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s23056/08ii%20Draft%20-%20Corporate%20Plan%202022-27%20v1.4.pdf?LLL=0


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn



 

 
 

Violence Against Women, Domestic 

Abuse & Sexual Violence (VAWDASV): 

Gwent Regional Strategy 2023 – 2027 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

This document is available in Welsh 

Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

 

Tudalen 17



 

2 

 

Contents 
Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................ 3 

Statement of Intent ................................................................................................................................ 5 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................ 6 

Legislative Context .............................................................................................................................. 7 

Policy Linkages .................................................................................................................................... 8 

UK Context .......................................................................................................................................... 9 

Global Context .................................................................................................................................. 10 

Regional Context ............................................................................................................................... 11 

Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence in Gwent ...................................... 13 

Prevalence and Scale ........................................................................................................................ 13 

Strategy Development ......................................................................................................................... 14 

Methodology ..................................................................................................................................... 14 

Findings ............................................................................................................................................. 14 

Violence Against Women .................................................................................................................. 15 

Domestic Abuse ................................................................................................................................ 16 

Sexual Violence ................................................................................................................................. 16 

Intersectionality ................................................................................................................................ 17 

Accessibility ....................................................................................................................................... 18 

Workforce Resilience ........................................................................................................................ 18 

Survivors As Experts ............................................................................................................................. 21 

How We Will Tackle VAWDASV ........................................................................................................... 24 

Fundamentals ................................................................................................................................... 25 

Focus Areas ....................................................................................................................................... 27 

National Training Framework ........................................................................................................... 31 

Cross Cutting Themes ....................................................................................................................... 31 

How Will We Deliver This Strategy? .................................................................................................... 34 

Strategy Principles ............................................................................................................................ 34 

Multi-Agency Working, Partnerships and Collaboration .................................................................. 35 

National Programmes ....................................................................................................................... 36 

Governance Arrangements ............................................................................................................... 38 

Gwent Regional VAWDASV Governance and Reporting Structures ................................................. 39 

Strategic Plan ........................................................................................................................................ 43 

Annex A: Definitions and Glossary ...................................................................................................... 45 

 

Tudalen 18



 

3 

 

Executive Summary 
 
Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) is everybody’s 

business. Individuals have a right to live, work and enjoy communities that are safe, and free 

from abuse and violence.  

 

This Strategy will set out how we are looking at achieving this vision across Gwent, in the 

prevention of VAWDASV, protection from VAWDASV and support for those impacted by 

VAWDASV. It will show that across Gwent, partners, stakeholders and those with lived 

experience of VAWDASV are committed to collaborative working and joined up approaches 

to tackle issues of abuse and violence.  

 

Due to regional movements in the period leading up to and in development of this Strategy, 

there has been a limited evidence base to truly understand local needs. Acknowledging the 

absence of quantitative and analytical data, this Strategy has been informed by the needs and 

demands of the sector through regional workshops and stakeholder meetings. Lived 

experience has also informed this Strategy through survivor engagement.  

 

The six objectives outlined within the Strategy have been developed in the context of Welsh 

Government’s National Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 

Strategy 2022-2026. To achieve these objectives, priorities have been separated into two 

approaches: 

 

Fundamentals (areas integral to successful change) 

1. Implementation of the Domestic Abuse Act, 2021 (Section 3) 

2. Regional Structures Reform  

3. Infrastructure for Regional Services and Delivery  

 

Focus Areas (specifically reflecting the regional needs of the Gwent population) 

1. Tackling Perpetration  

2. Children and Young People 

3. Misogyny and Harassment 

4. Multiple or Co-occurring Needs 

 

The Strategic Plan outlines how we intend to achieve these priorities by 2027. Delivery of the 

priorities will be detailed within an Annual Delivery Plan, agreed each year through the 

governance structures in place for the region.  

 

Although not specifically detailed within the Strategy, there will be definitive links across 

wider partners to embed VAWDASV as core business beyond the sector. These links include 

the regional Suicide and Self-Harm group, the IRIS programme in GP surgeries, Remote 

Tudalen 19



 

4 

 

Evidence Site under His Majesty’s Courts and Tribunal Service (HMCTS) and Local Criminal 

Justice Board to name a few. 

 

Our Strategy is ambitious as challenges to tackling abuse and violence are becoming greater 

- strong leadership is required if we are going to achieve a whole system approach for 

VAWDASV to be everybody’s business. For the next four years, the regional VAWDASV Board 

and Strategic Delivery Group are committed to ensuring that VAWDASV partners and 

stakeholders not only support the implementation and delivery of this Strategy, through 

contributing and developing evidence, but also take ownership and hold accountability under 

the Violence Against Women Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act, 2015. It is only 

in this way that we can support a Gwent population that is safe, healthy and free from abuse 

and violence.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 20



 

5 

 

Statement of Intent  
 
This Strategy builds on the Gwent VAWDASV Strategy 2018-2023 which set out the regional 

integrated approach to stop violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence and 

to improve the health and wellbeing of individuals and families affected by abuse, whilst also 

holding to account those who perpetrate such abuse.  

 

Our vision is for the region to be a safe place for all those impacted by VAWDASV - whether 

this be in the prevention of, protection from, or support to recover from VAWDASV. To 

achieve the vision, the Strategy creates a high level, single point of reference across the region 

for:  

 

“Relevant Authorities” – a framework to support the requirements set out in the Violence 

against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015  

 

Wider stakeholders – a clear, co-produced and collectively agreed priorities and expectations 

to improve outcomes for all individuals and families experiencing any form of Violence against 

Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence  

 

Commissioners - whilst recognising that this is not a commissioning strategy, the content and 

associated strategic delivery plan should inform and influence Violence against Women, 

Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence commissioning decisions and investment of resources 

across the region 

 

Survivors - a transparent way forward, defining how we tackle violence against women, 

domestic abuse and sexual violence to be held accountable in our implementation of this 

Strategy 

 

It will also detail how the existing partnerships and collaborative working arrangements 

between non-devolved and devolved public bodies, statutory services, specialist sector and 

the third sector will be further developed and strengthened, to move towards a society where 

everybody is able to live fear free from violence and abuse. 

 

It is intended that this Strategy and the associated focus areas and activities detailed within 

the region’s annual delivery plan, will support the Welsh Government and UK Government 

legislative, strategic and delivery framework to achieve the prevention of violence and abuse, 

the protection of victims and support for all those affected by violence against women, 

domestic abuse and sexual violence.  

 
 
 

Tudalen 21



 

6 

 

Introduction 
 
Violence Against Women Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) is a complex 

landscape, but in Wales, the UK and across the world, VAWDASV is considered to be a 

violation of human rights and a cause and consequence of inequality between women and 

men. It happens to women because they are women, and women are disproportionality 

impacted by certain forms of violence.  

 

Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence includes domestic abuse 

(physical, financial and emotional), coercive or controlling behaviour, rape, sexual assault and 

sexual violence, stalking, harassment, female genital mutilation (FGM), forced marriage, 

crimes committed in the name of ‘honour’, modern day slavery and trafficking, and sexual 

exploitation (including commercially through the sex industry, and sexual harassment). 

 

VAWDASV has far reaching consequences for families, children, communities, and society. 

The direct harm to the health and well-being of victims is clear, and at its most severe can, 

and does, result in death. However, impacts are wide-ranging - not just on health and 

wellbeing, but also on poverty, unemployment, homelessness, and the economy. It is also 

important to note that VAWDASV not only affects adults who experience abuse in the home, 

in intimate or family relationships but children also - for the first time, the Domestic Abuse 

Act 2021 recognises children as victims in their own right. Wider family members can also be 

impacted by VAWDASV as well as the experience of abuse and violence often being 

perpetrated in public spaces impacting the wider community. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

It is important to note that whilst this Strategy (as well as legislation and policy referred 

to), references violence against women and girls, it is because it is acknowledging the 

disproportionate experience of women and girls. It does not - in any way - negate violence 

and abuse directed towards men, boys and other genders, or violence and abuse 

perpetrated by women and other genders.  This Strategy recognises that anyone (all 

genders, older people, young people and children) can experience and be affected by 

domestic abuse, rape and sexual assault, sexual abuse, forced marriage, child sexual 

abuse, stalking and harassment, sexual harassment and exploitation and this can happen 

in any relationship regardless of sex, age, ethnicity, gender, sexuality, disability, religion or 

belief, income, geography or lifestyle.  

 

Similarly, throughout this document, language will be used that readers may not identify 

or associate with. The Strategy uses commonly used language which is not defined by its 

term or wording. A Glossary is provided in the Appendix of this Strategy for further 

reference.  

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 22



 

7 

 

Legislative Context 

 

Welsh Government has led the way in their tackling of VAWDASV in Wales; starting with the 

Right To Be Safe Strategy (2010) which was updated in 2016, published as the National 

Strategy on Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (2016-2021), 

following the enactment of the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual 

Violence (Wales) Act 2015 (‘the Act’). The Act, which aims to improve: 

 

a) arrangements for the prevention of gender-based violence, domestic abuse and sexual 

violence 

b) arrangements for the protection of victims of gender-based violence, domestic abuse and 

sexual violence and 

c) support for people affected by gender-based violence, domestic abuse, and sexual 

violence; 

 

places an emphasis on Relevant Authorities1 responsibilities to achieve Welsh Government’s 

vision to end violence against women and girls, domestic abuse and sexual violence in Wales, 

and their ambition for zero VAWDASV. 

 

This Strategy will also support the delivery of a number of key priorities across Welsh and UK 

Government. In considering this Strategy, context should also be given to the following 

legislation and its purpose: 

 

▪ Domestic Abuse Act 2021 – an Act that guarantees an independent Domestic Abuse 

Commissioner to be the voice that speaks on behalf of victims and survivors or domestic 

abuse. It also sets out the statutory powers available to the Domestic Abuse 

Commissioner to raise public awareness and hold both agencies and government to 

account in tackling domestic abuse.  

▪ The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 – improving the social, economic, 

environmental, and cultural wellbeing of those in Wales, through an approach of seven 

wellbeing goals that ensures public bodies think about the long term, work better with 

people, communities, and each other; looking to prevent problems and taking a more 

joined-up approach. 

▪ The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 – providing a framework for care and 

support in Wales; improving the wellbeing of people who need care and support, and 

carers who need support, and for transforming the way in which services are 

commissioned. 

 
1 Meaning of ‘’relevant authority’’ - Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 
2015 (legislation.gov.uk) 

Tudalen 23

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/3/crossheading/guidance-and-directions-in-relation-to-the-purpose-of-this-act/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/3/crossheading/guidance-and-directions-in-relation-to-the-purpose-of-this-act/enacted


 

8 

 

▪ The Modern Slavery Act 2015 – providing the tools to fight modern slavery; ensuring 

perpetrators can receive suitably severe punishments for these appalling crimes and 

enhance support and protection for victims. 

▪ Crime and Security Act 2010 – provides procedures for Domestic Violence Protection 

Orders (DVPOs) and the Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme (DVDS). 

▪ Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 – making it a criminal offence to force 

somebody to marry. 

▪ Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003 – underpinning Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) 

Orders and an FGM mandatory reporting duty. 

▪ Serious Crime Act 2015 – supports punishment of controlling or coercive behaviour in an 

intimate or family relationship and strengthened measures to manage people who 

commit sexual offences or those who pose a risk of sexual harm. 

▪ Housing (Wales) Act 2014 – enshrines local authorities in preventing and alleviating 

homelessness. 

▪ Renting Homes (Wales) Act 2016 – improving how individuals rent, manage and live in 

rented homes in Wales, including support victims and survivors escaping VAWDASV and 

enabling perpetrators to be targeted for eviction.  

▪ Equality Act 2010 – protecting individuals from discrimination in the workplace and wider 

society to strengthen protections and supports actions where there has been unlawful 

treatment of individuals.  

 

Policy Linkages 

 

Successfully implementing this Strategy requires coordination across several areas of policy. 

This Strategy will hold links to, and with, the following policy areas: 

 

▪ Health 

VAWDASV recognisably has an impact on mental health, often presenting as depression and 

anxiety, PTSD, and poor wellbeing. There can also be direct effects on physical health and 

reproductive health, as well as wider family wellbeing and public health. Aligning VAWDASV 

with health policies and long-term collaboration with GP’s, Hospitals and Community Health 

Services is key to successful outcomes for the population. This Strategy will be coordinated in 

line with Welsh Government’s ‘A Healthier Wales’ Plan (2018), Suicide and Self Harm 

Prevention Strategy (Talk to Me 2) and Mental Health (Wales) Measure 2010. 

▪ Substance Use 

Those who experience or perpetrate VAWDASV can often be entrenched in circumstances of 

harmful substance use. Links are therefore crucial on both a strategic and operational level, 

to ensure support for addressing presenting substance use needs, as well as looking to 

address underlying, long-term causality.  Implementation of this Strategy will be approached 

with consideration of Welsh Government’s Substance Misuse Delivery Plan and align with 

Gwent Substance use Area Planning Board policies.  

Tudalen 24



 

9 

 

▪ Housing and Homelessness 

Preventing homelessness, protecting housing rights and provision of good quality, safe 

accommodation is vital to ensuring stability and safety for people experiencing VAWDASV. 

This Strategy will draw links with housing policy and implementation of local housing 

strategies to ensure housing support for all those who experience VAWDASV, including older 

people, individuals with protected characteristics and those with multiple or co-occurring 

needs.  

▪ Social Services and Safeguarding  

The Wales Safeguarding Procedures and All Wales Practice Guides provides a solid framework 

for safeguarding adults, children and young people who are at risk of harm, neglect, or abuse. 

Many people who experience or perpetrate VAWDASV often have historical or existing 

relationship with Social Services so this Strategy will be coordinated with the drivers within 

statutory services. As VAWDASV victims may require safeguarding arrangements, this 

Strategy will also demonstrate alignment with Gwent Safeguarding Board policies and 

procedures and robust multi-agency working through strategic leads and governance 

structures. 

▪ Education 

With the Curriculum for Wales guidance enabling each school to develop its own curriculum, 

education will be key to the prevention of future VAWDASV through ‘healthy relationship’ 

and early intervention work. This Strategy will link to Healthy Schools Coordinator provision 

and consider how the commissioning, planning and delivery of VAWDASV approaches in 

education can support the four purposes of curriculum design and skills that can be developed 

within learning. 

▪ Equalities  

The Gender Equality Plan; Framework for Action on Disability: The Right to Independent 

Living; Race Equality Action Plan; LGBTQ+ Action Plan; guidance from the Older People’s 

Commissioner for Wales and Welsh Government No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF) 

Guidance will all underpin the delivery of this Strategy. There will also be links to structures 

that champion intersectionality and allyship (such as networks and forums), to ensure that 

this Strategy delivers for all across the region in the pursuit of its objectives.  

 

UK Context  

 
The success of this Strategy relies on acknowledging the UK context and how, non-devolved 

bodies2 are key partners in tackling VAWDASV. To support a consistent approach between UK 

Government and local, devolved areas, this Strategy will be supported by the UK Government 

Tackling Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) Strategy 2021 and Tackling Domestic 

Abuse Plan 2022. Guidance that will also inform the implementation of this Strategy includes: 

 

 
2 Police Forces, Police and Crime Commissioners and His Majesty’s Prison and Probation Service  

Tudalen 25



 

10 

 

▪ Controlling or Coercive Behaviour Statutory Guidance (April 2022) which provides 

information on controlling or coercive behaviour, to assist the police, criminal justice and 

other agencies in identifying, evidencing, charging, prosecuting and convicting the offence 

as well as providing information on how to reduce the risk of harm to the victim and their 

family; provide support for the victim and their family, including how other agencies and 

support services can assist; and manage the perpetrator 

▪ Violence Against Women and Girls National Statement of Expectations (December 2016) 

which sets out what local commissioners (Police and Crime Commissioners, Local 

Authorities, or health commissioners) need to put in place to ensure their response to 

violence against women and girls is collaborative, robust and effective 

▪ Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme Guidance (March 2014) (often referred to as 

‘’Clare’s Law’’) which sets out procedures that could be used by the police to disclose 

information about an individual’s previous violent and abusive offending, where this may 

help protect their partner, or ex-partner, from violence or abuse 

▪ Multi-agency Statutory Guidance on Female Genital Mutilation (July 2020) issued under 

section 5C(1) of the Female Genital Mutilation Act (2003) and extends to England and 

Wales, setting out the responsibilities of agencies involved in safeguarding and supporting 

women and girls affected by FGM 

▪ Multi-agency Statutory Guidance for the Conduct of Domestic Homicide Reviews 

(December 2016) which sets out the purpose of a domestic homicide review, conducting 

a review and involving family and friends 

▪ National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE): “Domestic violence and abuse: 

multi-agency working” – guidance that covers planning and delivering multi-agency 

services for domestic violence and abuse; aiming to identify, prevent and reduce domestic 

violence and abuse among women and men in heterosexual or same-sex relationships, 

and among young people 

 
Global Context  

 
There is acknowledgement that VAWDASV is a global issue. The UK is a member of the Council 

of Europe Convention on Preventing and Combating Violence Against Women and Domestic 

Violence (‘Istanbul Convention’) and this Strategy will root itself in the minimum standards of 

the convention to prevent, protect and support victims and prosecute perpetrators and 

offenders. It will also align with the UN Declaration on the Elimination of Violence Against 

Women (1993), enshrined within the UN Sustainable Development Goals 2030 (2015). 

 
 

 
 
 

Tudalen 26



 

11 

 

Regional Context  

 
The Gwent region covers the five local authority areas of Blaenau Gwent (BGCBC), Caerphilly 

(CCBC), Monmouthshire (MCC), Newport (NCC) and Torfaen (TCBC). The region is culturally 

diverse and has socio-economically disadvantaged communities with 12% of Gwent defined 

as ‘most deprived’3. Across the five local authorities, there is an ethnic minority population of 

around 5.2%, rising to around 12.5% in Newport4. The geography of the region is also varied 

and includes rural countryside areas, urban centres and the most easterly of the South Wales 

Valleys.  

 

 

 
Source: Gwent Public Services Board Wellbeing Assessment (May 2022) 

 

 

The most recent Wellbeing Assessment for Gwent (May 2022) noted that violence against 

women, domestic abuse and sexual violence continues to be an issue across Gwent and there 

is a need for robust arrangements for the prevention, protection and support for individuals 

affected by such violence and abuse. The 2022 Population Needs Assessment confirmed the 

below priority outcomes for the region following engagement with citizens and partners5: 

 

▪ Provide earlier intervention and safeguarding arrangements to potential victims through 

‘Ask & Act’ 

▪ Safeguard victims, including men, through effective partnership support 

 

Within the footprint of the region, there is also the Aneurin Bevan University Health Board 

(ABUHB), Heddlu Gwent Police, the Office of the Gwent Police and Crime Commissioner 

 
3 Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (full Index update with ranks): 2019 | GOV.WALES 
4 joint-strategic-equality-plan-2020.pdf (gwent.police.uk) 
5 Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence - Gwentrpb 

Tudalen 27

https://www.gov.wales/welsh-index-multiple-deprivation-full-index-update-ranks-2019
https://www.gwent.police.uk/SysSiteAssets/media/downloads/gwent/equality-and-diversity/joint-strategic-equality-plan-2020.pdf
https://www.gwentrpb.wales/violence-against-women-domestic-abuse-and-sexual-violence


 

12 

 

(OPCC), His Majesty’s Prison and Probation Service (HMPPS) and South Wales Fire and Rescue 

Service. Under this footprint, Gwent has recently become a Marmot Region6, adopting the 

eight Marmot principles to reduce health inequalities across the region.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Within the region there is also a range of existing activities, provision and support services in 

place to prevent, protect and support those affected by VAWDASV. Some of these include 

early intervention programmes, refuges, counselling services, multi-agency arrangements for 

the support and safety planning of high-risk victims and forums for identifying and disrupting 

perpetrators. This Strategy will continue to build on the good work that is being delivered in 

Gwent in pursuit of achieving the Strategy objectives.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
6 Gwent Marmot Region - Gwent Public Services Board Gwent Public Services Board (gwentpsb.org) 

This Strategy acknowledges that the region’s equality and diversity is not properly 

captured within its contents and there is a need to do more to understand equality and 

diversity in VAWDASV, as different and diverse communities will require varying responses 

and resources. As such, the VAWDASV Board are committing to understanding these 

needs and responding to them in the delivery of this Strategy.  

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 28

https://www.gwentpsb.org/en/gwent-marmot-region/


 

13 

 

Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence in 

Gwent 

 
Prevalence and Scale  

 
Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence are large scale, pervasive 

problems which, every year causes needless deaths and damage to thousands of lives across 

Wales. Whilst the incidence of VAWDASV is high, those who experience these forms of 

violence and abuse are known to under-report and official data therefore represents an under 

representation of the problem. Key data we have that confirms the prevalence and scale 

includes: 

 

Domestic Abuse 

21,558 Victims                 16,342 Victims 
       Incidents                 Crimes  

Jan ’20 to Dec ’22 (Source: Gwent Police) 

 
 

Honour Based Abuse (HBA) 

         109 incidents    81 HBA crimes 
Jan ’20 to Dec ’22 (Source: Gwent Police) 

 
 

Serious Sexual Offences          Initial MARAC Referrals 

          16,780              864         1,219  
                 Jan ’20 to Dec ’22                  2020                         2022 
            (Source: Gwent Police)         (Source: Gwent Police)  

 
 

Counselling for Sexual Violence & Abuse 

921 Individuals (115 Children/Young People, 806 Adults) 
Apr ’21 to Mar ’22 (Source: New Pathways and Cyfannol Women’s Aid) 

 

 

In the implementation of this Strategy, the prevalence and scale of VAWDASV across Gwent 

will be understood and monitored though ongoing cycles of needs assessments. In addition, 

recognising that there is a lack of data and statistics supporting prevalence and scale for the 

varying social constructs, consideration will be given during this Strategy as to how VAWDASV 

agencies and organisations can support improved data collection for more informed and 

accurate needs assessments.  

Tudalen 29



 

14 

 

Strategy Development  
 

Methodology  

 

To inform the development of this Strategy, information from the following sources were 

reviewed: 

 

▪ Welsh Government Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 

National Strategy (2022-2026) 

▪ Gwent Wellbeing Assessment (published 5 May 2022) 

▪ The most recent VAWDASV Needs Assessment (July 2020) 

▪ Gwent Police Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) Plan 2021-2024 

▪ Needs mapping information submitted by Gwent VAWDASV sector providers (October 

2022) 

▪ Stakeholder Engagement Strategy Development Session (December 2022)  

▪ Stakeholder Engagement Meetings (October to December 2022) 

▪ Survivor Engagement Sessions (October to December 2022) 

 

Findings 

 

The region, like the rest of Wales, the UK and the world has recently experienced a pandemic, 

and a resurgence and recovery from COVID-19 is still to be wholly experienced. This recovery 

has also been impacted by the current cost of living crisis thereby enabling a ‘perfect storm’ 

of economic and societal challenges that are facilitating further gender inequalities. During 

engagement with stakeholders and survivors, the increasing pressure on services and 

resources, together with the complexity of cases, economic challenges and workforce 

resilience issues have been clear.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

‘We are seeing more people needing support, but our team are working on a reduced 

service offer because so many of us are unwell with Covid’ 

Practitioner from the Specialist Sector 

‘MARAC meetings have been occurring far more regularly in response to the increase in 

demand… on average, they are currently 140 MARAC referrals per month… in response 

to the influx in referrals, partners are feeling the pressure and are struggling to remain 

engaged in the MARAC process’  

Information provided at VAWDASV Subgroup, September 2022 

 

Tudalen 30



 

15 

 

Across the region, the strain on public and specialist services, and the complexities that are 

now being faced - that need supporting and adequately resourcing - has been recognised by 

all stakeholders. Emerging themes and priorities identified by stakeholders as part of the 

methodology for this Strategy, included: 

 

Violence Against Women 

 

▪ There needs to be a better understanding of experiences of women and girls in relation 

to misogyny and workplace harassment  

▪ Misogyny needs tackling – calling it out, challenging behaviour and attitudes, changing 

social norms, culture, and attitudes; treating misogyny as a hate crime 

▪ Street harassment - uninvited attention from males where males do not see their 

behaviour as unacceptable, or as opportunistic chance to target vulnerable women 

▪ No male accountability for behaviour – women have to protect themselves rather than 

males changing their behaviour or championing behaviour change across their peer 

groups, social circles etc. 

▪ Stalking and associated risks needs more resource, especially where the Internet of Things 

(IoT)7 is part of stalking, and in its continued development at pace, technology cannot be 

escaped. For example, targeting social media, sharing information and photos, revenge 

porn, young people not recognising the consequences of engaging in some social media 

activities (e.g., sharing pictures) 

▪ Lack of trust in police – people having confidence to report, confidence of getting a 

response (criminal justice) and abuse of power 

▪ Workplace harassment – supporting the response to build trust and prevent abuse of 

power 

▪ A need for awareness of support available to prevent, protect and support victims of 

violence against women, aside from police and criminal justice processes 

▪ Online abuse is becoming more prevalent and inappropriate behaviour being seen at 

younger ages (role modelling from reality TV, social media, music lyrics) – impacting on 

healthy relationships for young people at a peer and child-parent level 

▪ Lack of understanding around Honour Based Abuse (HBA), forced marriage and FGM 

which is leading to difficulty in identification, response and understanding ‘what works’ 

▪ Coercion and control – double edge through technology as well as in person 

▪ Huge demand on MARAC – number of referrals, complexity of cases, high level numbers 

▪ Bystander/Allyship as a response to awareness raising, challenging attitudes and 

behaviours and support to report 

 

 
7 Internet of Things include physical objects (or groups of such objects) that have sensors, processing ability, 
software and other technologies that connect and exchange data with other devices and systems remotely via 
the internet or other communication devices (e.g., smart speakers, home security cameras, smart devices, 
Hives, Air Tags)  

Tudalen 31



 

16 

 

Domestic Abuse  

 

▪ Needs to be a whole family approach to supporting domestic abuse – victim, perpetrator 

and child/young people; tackles perpetration as well as support for victim and wellbeing 

of family; prevents main parent/caregiver being viewed as incapable of, or having poor 

parenting skills trying to keep child(ren) safe 

▪ Housing supply is an issue – move on options are limited and people are in refuge longer 

than they need to be which prevents access for those who need it 

▪ Limited engagement with/from health in identification of support, response and 

collaboration with other agencies across the sector, outside of GP based IRIS8 programme 

▪ Coercion and control – awareness and information needed on controlling behaviours 

versus coercive behaviours and perceptions of these in relationships 

▪ Consideration of links between domestic abuse, substance use and mental health 

(multiple or co-occurring needs) – services offer support on presenting need so can see 

demand on mental health, substance use, VAWDASV services and police but needs 

aligned approach 

▪ Repeat victims of domestic abuse – not clear on what support is available or poor support 

is offered because professionals do not know individual is repeat victim so whole picture 

not understood to provide appropriate support  

▪ DASH as a risk assessment tool – may flag other forms of VAWDASV but focus is on the 

reported issue; can often miss nuances of relationship issues or richness of information to 

be disclosed 

▪ Strangulation (non-fatal) needs further learning to prevent and support  

▪ MARAC demand – increase in referrals and under-resourced MARAC team 

▪ Child/adolescent on parent violence – gap in services; delayed reporting; minimisation 

where child on parent or intrafamilial abuse or violence to protect perpetrator  

▪ Perpetrators presenting as victims can lead to mistrust in services for actual victims  

 

Sexual Violence 

 

▪ Women and girl’s safety – at night (with a specific reference to training across the night-

time economy (e.g., Taxi Drivers, Door Security Staff, Bar Staff) around identifying 

vulnerabilities); in communities; sexual harassment in public; inappropriate touching in 

street and schools; sex trafficking; street-based work; male misogyny and attitudes of 

‘entitlement to sex’; abuse of power within professions (e.g., sexual favours) 

▪ Sexual exploitation – through peer relationships, intimate partner relationships, for 

commercial purposes or via dating sites 

▪ Lack of widespread understanding of prevalence and type of sexual violence issues  

 
8 Iris Programme (llamau.org.uk) 

Tudalen 32

https://www.llamau.org.uk/iris-programme


 

17 

 

▪ Abuse through technology – threats to disclose messages or images, online sexual 

exploitation and radicalisation of young people who are particularly susceptible (leading 

to child sexual exploitation) 

▪ Gateway offences (offences, or first-time offences, where consequence or punishment is 

light) offers to identify early indicators and progression of sexual violence (e.g., exposure)  

▪ Social media contributing to ideologies and modelling of behaviours that are 

inappropriate and unacceptable, glorifying behaviours and putting pressure on young 

people – sexting; grooming; access to pornography; Only Fans content; a risk that social 

media behaviours are becoming normalised and accepted  

▪ Lack of understanding and support for young people displaying problematic or harmful 

sexual behaviours 

▪ Lack of understanding around choice in relationships (young people and adults) – consent 

versus coercion  

▪ Lack of models or programmes available for perpetrators of sexual violence – no health 

services or support available for people who have, or might commit sexual offences  

▪ Sexual offences viewed as police responsibility – rape team within police but lack of 

programmes or resource for perpetrators where there is no conviction 

▪ Lack of acknowledgement around the complexity of trauma and support required for 

victims of sexual abuse or violence  

▪ Increase in ‘incel’ ideology and cultures – moving away from ‘incel’ forums that are filled 

with self-pity towards grievances against women and girls, misogyny and advocating 

graphic sexual violence 

 

Intersectionality 

 
▪ More male victims coming forward but still unconscious bias in response  

▪ Data showing increase in older people now reporting they are victims 

▪ Elder abuse - opportunities for older people to come forward to report controlling or 

abusive behaviours; can be experiencing abuse or violence from older child living at home; 

increase in domestic homicides in older people (50+ years old) in region  

▪ Preventing VAWDASV perpetrated in care homes – psychiatric units, refugee centres, 

older persons care home (i.e., institutionalised settings) 

▪ Rough Sleepers – support to escape exploitation in adolescence, street-based 

exploitation, street drinking if individuals are not able to access refuge 

▪ Engagement with minority ethnic groups as well as those with protected characteristics 

(deaf, LGBTQ+, disability, Gypsy Roma Travellers accessing support or fleeing 

communities) needs to be properly considered  

▪ Seeing more and more funding opportunities requiring services to be ‘by and for’ or led 

by individuals with lived experience  

▪ Difficult to meet the needs of everybody in refuge – language, cultural sensitivity  

Tudalen 33



 

18 

 

▪ More resources to support same sex relationships where there is domestic 

abuse/violence and transgender victims – people and services often not knowing or being 

resourced to support as situations do not fit into ‘norms’ 

▪ Older people – wanting acknowledgement and support for historical incidences of sexual 

violence of abuse  

 

Accessibility  

 
▪ Resources do not match the scale and ambition of tackling issues  

▪ Evidence of increase in older people being victims of domestic homicides and not all 

services being accessible for all ages (e.g., older people experiencing abuse or wanted to 

flee are considered for residential home when not suitable) 

▪ Funding issues post pandemic, cost of living crisis and continued economic challenges 

being faced and sustainability of services  

▪ Too much compartmentalisation within funding and political oversight (social care, 

health, justice) – need to be more collaborative with streamlined approaches and joined 

up support 

▪ Impact of challenges and issues leads to increase in statutory services threshold 

▪ Access to refuge if in full time work or no access to public funds – can prevent people from 

fleeing or leave them at risk of homelessness, being ‘bounced’ around services and 

agencies 

▪ Need funding that supports flexibility to provide equal access to resourced services – 

currently not equal across rural areas  

▪ Implementation of Domestic Abuse Act and resource requirements – extending time 

period for domestic abuse related common assault; children and young people identified 

as victims in their own right; non-fatal strangulation offence  

 

Workforce Resilience 

 
▪ Recruitment and retention of sector staff is a huge issue – combination of Covid burnout, 

salary offers (lack of value on roles and salaries), impact of cost of living and mental 

demands of role  

▪ Time required to familiarise and implement training undertaken, knowledge and skills 

developed (i.e., dedicated time post training to research, shadow, experience and 

implement to strengthen response and support continuous service improvement) 

▪ Cultural competence is needed to be able to identify, respond to and support Gwent’s 

diverse cultures 

▪ Requirement for public health approach, trauma informed approach, equalities approach 

and being led by lived experience but no capacity to become trained and no resource to 

implement these approaches successfully and meaningfully  

Tudalen 34



 

19 

 

▪ Professionals are passionate and committed to their delivery and making a difference, but 

challenges make it difficult to create environments that better support staff 

 

Specific Considerations 

 
Proposed legislation that was also heavily referred to throughout this Strategy development, 

which will require specific consideration for Strategy and policy alignment, governance, 

action, and resource implications in addressing VAWDASV across the region included: 

 

Serious Violence Duty 

The Duty covers the requirements set out in Chapter 1 of Part 2 of the Police, Crime, 

Sentencing and Courts Act (2022) for specified authorities9 within a local government area, to 

work together and plan to prevent and reduce serious violence10; including identifying the 

kinds of serious violence that occur in the area, the causes of that violence (so far as it is 

possible to do so), and to prepare and implement a strategy for preventing, and reducing 

serious violence in the area.  

 

The Duty does not require the creation of new multi-agency structures as existing local 

structures can be used to comply with the requirements of the Duty, but essentially, specified 

authorities must work together to prevent and reduce serious violence in their local areas 

and, ultimately, improve community safety and safeguarding. 

 
Online Safety Bill  
The Bill introduces new rules for firms which host user-generated content, i.e., those which 

will allow users to post their own content online or interact with each other, and for search 

engines, which will have tailored duties focused on minimising the presentation of harmful 

search results to the users. Platforms that fail to protect people will need to answer to the 

regulator and can face heavy fines or in serious cases, be blocked. All platforms in scope will 

need to tackle and remove illegal material online, particularly material relating to child sexual 

exploitation and abuse. The new online safety laws will make the internet a safer place for 

everyone in the UK, especially children. 

 

Victims Bill 

Published in May 2022, this draft bill when legislated will affect all victims of crime, but it is 

anticipated those most affected will be victims of serious crime, including VAWDASV. The 

draft Victims Bill includes measures that will: 

 

 
9 Specified Authorities include Police, Justice (Probation services and Youth Offending Teams), Fire and Rescue, 
Health and Local Authorities  
10 Whilst the Duty does not specifically have to include domestic abuse and sexual violence, the region’s 
partners will look to see how this can be included within the Strategic Needs Assessment 

Tudalen 35



 

20 

 

▪ amplify victims’ voices and make sure victims are at the heart of the criminal justice 

system 

▪ improve support for victims to cope and recover from the impact of crime and enable 

them to engage with the criminal justice system 

▪ strengthen transparency and oversight of criminal justice agencies at local and national 

level so that victims’ experiences support them to engage, and remain engaged with, the 

criminal justice system 

 

These measures will help victims to have confidence that there is the right support available 

and that if they report crime, the criminal justice system will treat them in the way they should 

rightly expect. 

 

Public Sexual Harassment 

In 2022 the Home Office consulted on the option of creating a new public sexual harassment 

criminal offence. With the vast majority of respondents considering public sexual harassment 

to be a widespread problem (despite already being illegal), it will now be made a specific 

offence with a maximum sentence of two years. This commits the government to pursuing 

new legislation which builds on the intentional ‘harass, alarm, distress’ definition first 

established in the Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994 as well as setting out new 

guidance for Police and Prosecutors on sexual harassment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 36



 

21 

 

Survivors As Experts 
 
In understanding the emerging themes and priorities for VAWDASV across the region, 

stakeholders acknowledged the importance of survivors as experts. Survivors’ voices are 

central to providing a perspective that no agency can realise unless they have mechanisms 

within their organisations for the development and delivery of services led by people with 

lived experience. In the development of this Strategy, survivors have told us what works well 

across the region, as well as the challenges they experience.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Survivor engagement as part of this Strategy development has been rich and insightful. The 

voices of those with lived experience has been reflected throughout and will continue to 

influence regional delivery plans, developments and focus areas.  

 

It is important to note that there was no consultation with male survivors as part of this 

process. The reason for this was twofold. Firstly, there are limited services that are supporting 

male survivors and secondly, those identified did not want to participate. Similarly, survivors 

of sexual violence are under-represented due to the barriers they face in engagement 

activities (e.g., risk of re-traumatisation and higher levels of support needed).  This means 

there are significant gaps in knowledge; however, in the delivery of this Strategy and regional 

work, there will be a commitment to supporting engagement and participation by all 

survivors, with an emphasis on creating suitable opportunities for engagement where they 

do not already exist.  

 

The responding officers were absolutely fantastic. Even though I was hysterical and all 

responding officers were male, when trying to calm me down no one was condescending. 

They listened to what I had to say, answered any questions I had and told me what would 

happen next 

Victim who had been assaulted by her partner  

and locked herself in a different part of the house until help arrived 

When I left my abuser I was housed in a temporary flat but this left me isolated. I was 

nervous, on my own and had been brainwashed. I’d lost my independence. I started to 

talk to neighbours but later learned that there was a perpetrator upstairs in my block after 

he committed a really serious offence. It frightened and retraumatised me. Was there any 

thought or consideration given to my circumstances and who I would be living around 

when I was housed there? If you are a victim of domestic abuse housing should consider 

this 

Survivor Voice, October 2022 

Tudalen 37



 

22 

 

Survivor engagement will primarily be achieved through existing structures, including the 

Gwent Police Survivor Engagement Network, the National Strategy workstreams for Survivor 

Engagement and groups and forums that exist within specialist sector organisations. In 

addition to these forums, this Strategy will prioritise on-going engagement, participation – 

and where possible – co-production with survivors and individuals with lived experience 

through the following commitments: 

 

▪ supporting organisations and providers to embed a culture of engagement and 

participation for ongoing development of services or response to VAWDASV 

▪ facilitating support to overcome structural barriers that can exclude or hinder 

participation 

▪ welcoming different practices and models of participation; especially those that support 

participation from seldom heard communities, black and minority ethnic groups and 

individuals with protected characteristics or communication difficulties  

▪ supporting reviews on the effects and impact of participation to increase accountability 

to survivors, supporting outcome focused approaches 

 

Noting the ambition to embed equality and diversity within the delivery of the Strategy across 

the region, survivor engagement in the coming years will consciously uphold principles of 

inclusivity to support survivor voice by individuals with protected characteristics. Links will 

also be made with existing forums (e.g., Children’s Commissioner, Domestic Abuse 

Commissioner’s Office and Welsh Government Children & Young People Blueprint 

workstream) to ensure the voices of children and young people are also reflected in our work.  

 

This Strategy acknowledges the vital importance of collaborating with survivors who are 

‘experts by experience’ in terms of what has worked for them, their pathways through 

services and how easy (or difficult) it has been to find the right service and move towards 

independence and freedom from abuse. Key issues, challenges and concerns raised by 

survivors are essential for continuous improvement of services.  

 

 
Survivor Engagement Session, October 2022 

Tudalen 38



 

23 

 

Survivor engagement success will be determined by the following measures: 

 

▪ there has been engagement from the outset 

▪ survivors were well represented and more than just one or two ‘token’ members 

▪ there has been a real say in decisions 

▪ opportunities exist to meet regularly and receive updates on actions and progress 

▪ activities are safe, inclusive, and meaningful 

▪ recognition is provided for subject matter/lived experience and contribution to results 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 39



 

24 

 

How We Will Tackle VAWDASV 

 

Aligned to the National Strategy, Gwent will adopt the following six objectives, mapped to the 

three aims of the Act: 

 

Prevention 
 

Objective 1  

Challenge the public attitude to violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence 

across the Welsh population through awareness raising and space for public discussion with 

the aim to decrease its occurrence. 

 

Objective 2  

Increase awareness in children, young people and adults of the importance of safe, equal and 

healthy relationships and empowering them to positive personal choices.  

 

Protection 
 

Objective 3  

Increase the focus on holding those who commit abuse to account and supporting those who 

may carry out abusive or violent behaviour to change their behaviour and avoid offending.  

 

Objective 4  

Make early intervention and prevention a priority.  

 

Provision of Support 
 

Objective 5  

Relevant professionals are trained to provide effective, timely and appropriate responses to 

victims and survivors.  

 

Objective 6  

Provide all victims with equal access to appropriately resourced, high quality, needs-led, 

strength-based, inter-sectional, and responsive services across Wales. 

 

These objectives will be pursued in an approach separated into: 

 

▪ three ‘Fundamentals’ (i.e., areas integral to successful change in achievement of the vision 

and Objectives) and  

▪ four Focus Areas, that specifically reflect the regional needs of the Gwent population. 

Tudalen 40



 

25 

 

Fundamentals 

 

1. Implementation of the Domestic Abuse Act 2021 (Section 3) 
 

The Domestic Abuse Act became law in England and Wales on 30 April 2021. Whilst the 

Violence Against Women Domestic Abuse Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015 will continue to 

hold precedence in Wales, the legislating of the Domestic Abuse Act has an impact on the 

core business and service delivery of statutory VAWDASV agencies across the region. Under 

the Act, there is now: 

 

▪ A legal definition of domestic abuse which recognises children as victims in their own right 

▪ A legal duty on councils to fund support for survivors in ‘safe accommodation’ 

▪ A guarantee that all survivors will be in priority need for housing 

▪ New criminal offences including coercive control, non-fatal strangulation, threats to 

disclose private sexual images 

 

This has an impact for Relevant Authorities (i.e., local authorities) as defined under the 

VAWDASV Act as well as public bodies who deal with VAWDASV (e.g., Police) and the third 

sector who are often grant funded to provide specialist, high quality, expert support to victims 

and survivors.  

 

Acknowledging the resource required to initiate changes across statutory agencies to 

successfully implement the Domestic Abuse Act, this Strategy will prioritise supporting 

Relevant Authorities to fulfil the legal requirements of domestic abuse which recognises 

children as victims in their own right. In pursuing this Fundamental, the following will be 

progressed: 

 

▪ An evidence-based needs assessment on children and young people impacted by 

VAWDASV, to link with Marmot principles and include: 

- an analysis and understanding of services to support children, young people and 

families  

- the identification of gaps and areas for specialist service development  

to further inform the Strategy direction and act as a baseline 

▪ Raising awareness of services, pathways of support and interventions for children and 

young people impacted by VAWDASV  

▪ Collaborative commissioning and/or grant funding of services, pathways of support and 

interventions where gaps are identified  

▪ A review of the role of public services for the further development of partnership working 

(e.g., Operation Encompass, multi-agency safeguarding hubs) to meet the needs of, and 

support children and young people impacted by VAWDASV  

 

Tudalen 41



 

26 

 

The above will be enabled through close working between the regional Safeguarding Board, 

existing regional partnership working arrangements and further expanding joint and inter 

agency working to ensure effective protection and support of child victims.  

 

2.  Regional Structures Reform 

 

In December 2021 the Gwent Public Services Board agreed a comprehensive governance 

review of Community Safety, incorporating Substance use Area Planning Board delivery and 

VAWDASV delivery across Gwent. Alongside this review, the region has also reviewed and 

consulted on its Wellbeing Plan, become a Marmot Region11 and also begun planning for the 

implementation of the Serious Violence Duty and subsequent Strategic Needs Assessment. 

On a national level, the roll out of the Single Unified Safeguarding Review (SUSR) will also 

commence in 2023.  

 

The development of this Strategy has been a timely parallel to these changes. It has been 

recognised that these wider regional reforms offer an opportunity to effectively implement a 

VAWDASV structure and landscape that co-exists and intersects with other regional 

structures, to enable true sustainable and collaborative working in the pursuit and 

achievement of the aims of the VAWDASV Act. In-line with these regional reforms, the 

following will be pursued in the achievement of this Fundamental: 

 

▪ Building VAWDASV into governance arrangements within wider strategic areas currently 

subject to reform, to effectuate robust and well-grounded infrastructure for supporting 

victims and survivors and tackling perpetration 

▪ Reviewing the new regional structures for partnership delivery of sustainable services 

(both core and commissioned)  

 

3. Infrastructure for Regional Services and Delivery 

 

The region benefits from a range of services and support for victims, survivors, and 

perpetrators of VAWDASV, with the specialist and third sector delivering the majority of 

these. This delivery includes community provision, safety planning, counselling services, 

wellbeing projects, refuges, educative interventions as well as evidence-based programmes. 

Services available are funded through prescriptive parameters that prevent connectedness, 

flexible approaches and collaboration. The funding is often of a short-term nature and this 

can hinder the ability of organisations in their efforts to prevent and respond to violence 

against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence.  

 

 
11 Gwent Marmot Region Launch Event - Gwent Public Services Board Gwent Public Services Board 

Tudalen 42

https://www.gwentpsb.org/en/gwent-marmot-region/marmot-leadership-launch-event/


 

27 

 

Under the VAWDASV Act, Relevant Authorities have statutory obligations to prevent, protect 

and support victims of VAWDASV. This Fundamental will therefore focus on: 

 

▪ Establishing ‘benchmark’ needs assessments that outline problem profiles, prevalence, 

scale, good practice and resource deficits 

▪ Regularly reviewing and updating needs assessments to support responses to ‘live’ 

priorities 

▪ Establishing a VAWDASV Commissioning Group with Relevant Authority and 

commissioning cross-sector representation, for a focus on maintaining, sustaining and 

developing VAWDASV services  

▪ How the region can move towards VAWDASV services and delivery embedded in a whole 

system approach 

 

Focus Areas 

 

The following Focus Areas have been identified in the development of this Strategy: 

 

1. Tackling Perpetration  

 

Currently, there are limited programmes available across the region to tackle perpetration 

and challenge those who perpetrate in changing their behaviours. This is primarily because of 

funding as well as a lack of evidence-based programmes for domestic abuse and sexual 

violence perpetration for both adults and children/adolescents/young people.  

 

Working with perpetrators is fundamental to successfully tackling VAWDASV and reducing 

the number of VAWDASV victims. However, it requires a whole system approach to achieve 

true early and effective intervention and opportunities to divert perpetrators. To tackle 

perpetration across Gwent, this Focus Area will prioritise: 

 

▪ Undertaking a regional needs assessment that will inform a whole system approach to 

tackling perpetration, which includes: 

o Collaborative working arrangements to enable the disruption of perpetrators 

o Identification and response to serious and serial perpetrators    

o Evidence-based adults and children/young person VAWDASV perpetrator 

programmes (i.e., ‘What Works’ in tackling perpetration)  

o Mapping of perpetrator services and programmes to inform commissioning 

arrangements and sustainable funding influencing  

▪ Understanding victim data from perpetration of VAWDASV, for commissioning of 

perpetrator services and programmes  

 

Tudalen 43



 

28 

 

Through collaborative working with partners and providers across the criminal justice system, 

social care, third sector and within communities, we will ensure that perpetrators of 

VAWDASV in Gwent are dealt with appropriately, provided the opportunity to break cycles of 

perpetration through behaviour change and that survivors and their children are given 

protection against further abuse. These priority areas will meet strategy Objectives 3 and 4. 

 

2. Children and Young People  
 

Key to breaking generational cycles and mitigating Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) is 

understanding the needs of children and young people. This includes acknowledging the 

impact on them as witnesses (they are now recognised as victims in their own right under the 

Domestic Abuse Act 2022), supporting a response when they have experienced VAWDASV, or 

recognising and challenging societal ‘norms’ that lead them to engage in unhealthy attitudes, 

behaviours and relationships. Wales has long been committed to children’s rights and the 

United Nation Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC). Children’s rights are already 

enshrined in Welsh law (Rights of Children and Young Persons (Wales) Measure 2011) with 

the measure placing a duty on Ministers to have due regard to the UNCRC when developing 

or reviewing legislation and policy.   

 

Prevention of VAWDASV can be initiated in school-age children and young people through 

education. Hafan Cymru’s Spectrum Project12 supports a whole school approach to healthy 

relationship education with the new Curriculum for Wales Relationships and Sexuality 

Education (RSE) Code providing the mandatory elements for RSE learning in schools. 

However, development of this Strategy has informed that the needs of children and young 

people are significant; they are being exposed to abuse at home, they are perpetrating abuse 

against their parent(s)/caregiver(s), they are experiencing abuse and harassment in schools 

and they are engaging in controlling and harmful peer relationships, not recognising such due 

to social media, online content, and lack of positive modelling. Therefore, more needs to be 

done in the region to protect and support children and young people from becoming victims 

of VAWDASV. To better prevent, protect and support VAWDASV in children and young 

people, this Focus Area will prioritise: 

 

▪ Empowering and educating young people to support VAWDASV prevention and early 

intervention; especially for young people not in employment, education or training 

(NEET), those in education other than at school (EOTAS) provision or those with additional 

learning needs  

▪ Challenging unhealthy attitudes and behaviours through education and empowerment  

▪ Encouraging reporting to understand causes and prevalence to support actions towards 

prevention and early intervention   

 
12 Spectrum Project - Educating schools in Wales about Domestic Abuse and Healthy Relationships. 

Tudalen 44

https://spectrumproject.co.uk/?adlt=strict


 

29 

 

▪ Developing a ‘Knowledge Hub’ of evidence-based programmes and interventions for 

children and young people 

▪ Ensuring the voice and experience of children and young people impacted by VAWDASV 

in the development of planning and delivery of services 

▪ Grant funding programmes for children and young people aged between 3 and 21 years 

old 

 

Working closely with professionals in education, social care, police and youth/community-

based services, we can challenge perceptions, increase awareness and empower personal 

choice to promote sustainable wellbeing and safety in the next generation. These priority 

areas will meet strategy Objectives 2, 4 and 6. 

 

3. Misogyny and Harassment 

 

Misogyny is rife within society with attitudes of toxic masculinity, victim blaming, and 

inequalities linked to protected characteristics (i.e., race, disability etc.), contributing to 

negative behaviours increasing the existence of VAWDASV; for example, casual misogyny 

permeating the workplace and harassment in public spaces. 

 

Challenging misogyny is a huge feat demanding whole society education, awareness raising 

and public discussion. It requires ‘calling out’ and directly challenging those who perpetrate 

misogyny and misogynistic behaviours in order to make women feel safe. Currently, 

expectations are placed on female victims to ‘protect themselves’ from misogyny or 

harassment, both within the workplace and public spaces. To start the fundamental shift 

required and begin to tackle misogyny and harassment, this Focus Area will prioritise: 

 

▪ Communication and campaign activities that raise awareness of misogyny and 

harassment, creating a stigmatisation to decrease occurrences 

▪ Encouraging reporting of harassment to understand causes and prevalence 

▪ Learning from culture reviews within other charitable, public and private bodies; building 

on the work that is being done more widely outside the region 

▪ Supporting Relevant Authorities to identify and implement a response for instances of 

workplace harassment  

▪ Supporting identification and reporting of abuse of power, position or perpetration by 

public bodies 

 

Central to successfully achieving the above priorities will be a clearly communicated and 

effective response by public bodies and Relevant Authorities to disclosures. This Strategy, 

through its partnership and governance arrangements, will ensure that all victims who take 

the step to report their experience, can be confident and trust public bodies in their 

Tudalen 45



 

30 

 

commitment to end misogyny and harassment. These priority areas will meet strategy 

Objectives 1. 

 

4. Multiple or Co-occurring Needs  

 

VAWDASV can impact on many areas of life. It can introduce or affect additional challenges 

(e.g., mental health) as well as contribute to further issues (e.g., homelessness, poverty). 

Currently, VAWDASV is primarily responded to via a compartmentalised approach, supporting 

the presenting needs of victims and current behaviours of perpetrators.  

 

To successfully tackle VAWDASV, a contextual approach is needed that considers support 

needs inter-linked with, or those that compound VAWDASV. These needs include mental 

health, substance use, homelessness/housing, exploitation (included those exploited through 

sex work), employment, poverty and access to finances or financial support. Across the 

region, services are seeing an increase in individuals with multiple or co-occurring needs, so 

addressing VAWDASV alongside the multiple needs that exist is going to need multi agency 

intervention. However, the systems, pathways and solutions are not currently established to 

provide this level of support effectively. To begin to address this gap, this Focus Area will 

prioritise: 

 

▪ Training the sector to understand trauma informed approaches to respond appropriately 

to VAWDASV 

▪ Exploring cross-specialism roles that support a ‘No Wrong Door’ approach  

▪ Strengthening collaboration between agencies and providers to enable effective and 

responsive services 

▪ Facilitating networks, communication pathways and resources to address and support 

solution focused approaches to barriers encountered 

 

VAWDASV is “everybody’s business” and so it should not be the responsibility of a single 

organisation to support or address VAWDASV. It requires multi-agency commitment and 

collaborative working to achieve long-term, sustainable change for individuals and society. 

These priority areas will meet strategy Objectives 4, 5 and 6. 

 

In addition to the Fundamentals and Focus Areas, the foundations of this Strategy will be 

rooted in ensuring that professionals are trained to provide effective, timely and appropriate 

responses to victims, survivors, and perpetrators. This will be achieved through the National 

Training Framework and Specialist Syllabus training offer.  

 

 

 

Tudalen 46



 

31 

 

National Training Framework 

  

The National Training Framework (NTF)13 outlines Welsh Government’s requirements for 

training on VAWDASV across public services and specialist third sector. Under the VAWDASV 

(Wales) Act 2015, Relevant Authorities have a legislative duty to ensure that all their 

employees complete this training to fulfil their statutory obligations. Consisting of six groups, 

the Framework provides minimum mandatory training of professionals aligned to their roles: 

 

Group Training Audience 

1 E-learning All Public Service Professionals 

2 Ask & Act 
Professionals who are likely to be in jobs where VAWDASV 

is an issue for their client group 

3 
Ask & Act 

Champions 

Individuals in roles which require them to do more than 

“Ask and Act” and those who perform a “Champion” role 

4 Specialist Sector 

Professionals whose client group is specifically those 

affected by violence against women, domestic abuse and 

sexual violence 

5 
Managers of 

Specialist Sector 

Service managers working in the violence against women, 

domestic abuse & sexual violence sector 

6 
Public Service 

Leaders 

Strategic Leaders who have a responsibility to foster a 

culture and infrastructure in which violence against women, 

domestic abuse and sexual violence are acknowledged as 

issues which may affect the workforce, the client group and 

friends and family 

 

Specialist Syllabus 
 

This Strategy will also support the delivery of Specialist Syllabus training that is mapped to the 

Framework and additional training commissioned by Welsh Government. Training will be 

reviewed on an annual basis but will consist of an offer that supports the development of 

skills, knowledge and experience needed of professionals, to identify and deliver support that 

meets regional needs. 

 

Cross Cutting Themes 

 

Appreciating that VAWDASV traverses a number of themes, there are key areas that will also 

cut across the success of this Strategy. These are: 

 
13 National Training Framework on violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence | GOV.WALES 

Tudalen 47

https://www.gov.wales/national-training-framework-violence-against-women-domestic-abuse-and-sexual-violence?adlt=strict


 

32 

 

 

Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) 

The region’s MARAC’s have seen a huge increase in referrals recently. The meetings, which 

share information on the highest risk domestic abuse cases, have seen additional pressures 

on police, Independent Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVAs) and other specialists from the 

statutory and voluntary sectors who sit in MARAC’s. MARAC is a crucial area of business for 

protecting and supporting victims of VAWDASV.  

 

Safeguarding 

The region currently benefits from strong working relationships and robust arrangements 

with the Gwent Safeguarding Board. Aligning safeguarding and VAWDASV processes, this 

Strategy will focus on the following areas to strengthen responses to VAWDASV across the 

region: 

 

▪ Single Unified Safeguarding Review (SUSR)14 

▪ Elder Abuse and VAWDASV in Older People 

▪ Transitional Safeguarding  

▪ Suicide and Self Harm Prevention 

 

Multiculturalism and Intersectionality 

Gwent has a diverse population and crucial to understanding and addressing VAWDASV 

across communities, is acknowledging cultural beliefs and recognising the impact of 

discrimination and disadvantage that intersectionality can bring. To fully support victims and 

survivors of VAWDASV, this Strategy will establish the structures to clearly understand the 

needs of Black and Minority Ethnic people, disabled people, children, older people and 

LGBTQ+ communities to support more responsive services.  

 

Strategic Planning  

Effective strategic planning is key in tackling VAWDASV as part of a whole systems approach. 

Through existing regional platforms, this Strategy will seek to influence policies and strategies 

across safeguarding, community safety, substance use, housing, health, police and probation 

to improve the planning, integration and collaboration in response to VAWDASV. This will be 

achieved through enacting a clear vision and working across these fields to share knowledge 

to influence thinking.  

 

Commissioning  
Welsh Government’s Statutory Guidance for the Commissioning of VAWDASV Services in 

Wales will provide the parameters and principles for commissioning of VAWDASV services 

 
14 Single Unified Safeguarding Review | GOV.WALES 

Tudalen 48

https://www.gov.wales/single-unified-safeguarding-review-guidance#:~:text=The%20Single%20Unified%20Safeguarding%20Review%20%28SUSR%29%20is%20a,the%20trauma%20and%20time%20in%20getting%20a%20decision.


 

33 

 

that are funded via the Welsh Government VAWDASV regional grant. However, it should be 

recognised that VAWDASV services across the region are enabled through a range of funding 

streams. Relevant Authorities and public bodies commit a significant amount of funding to 

mitigate the effects of VAWDASV across the region, with funding also coming from Supporting 

People; Housing; Social Care; Police; Office of Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC); Home 

Office; Ministry of Justice; and grants or contracts specialist or third sector organisations can 

secure. Whilst funding services, programmes, support or interventions in this way can lead to 

a lack of sustainability, inequity and inconsistency in delivery, it also brings much needed 

funding and support to the region to tackle VAWDASV through specific expertise (e.g., IDVA 

and ISVA services).  

 

This Strategy will ensure that across the sector and beyond, Commissioners are informed 

about VAWDASV, where the links are to their area of work and understand their 

responsibilities for better investment. This will be achieved through the following 

commitments under the governance arrangements for the region: 

 

▪ Strengthening collaboration and working arrangements with key Commissioners in 

health, housing and substance use to inform planning and budgeting to ensure VAWDASV 

is complemented in other areas 

▪ Collaboration and equal partnership across appropriate agencies to ensure the effective 

investment in responses to VAWDASV and enable integrated pathways of support that 

promote prevention and earlier intervention  

▪ Not undertaking commissioning activities in silos to support specialist provision linking 

with mainstream provision and services  

▪ Providing all survivors, including children and young people, equal access to holistic 

appropriately resourced, high quality, needs-led, strength based, and trauma informed, 

gender responsive services across the region  

▪ Engaging with and be informed by survivors, including children and young people, to 

inform needs analysis, service design and whole system responses  

▪ Understanding the expertise of the specialist sector to inform needs analysis, service 

design and whole system responses  

▪ Understanding where good services are already being delivered, in accordance with 

recognised standards and consider how best to facilitate service 

▪ Where possible, providing stability to the sector in terms of duration of contracts or 

agreements  

 

 
 
 

Tudalen 49



 

34 

 

How Will We Deliver This Strategy? 
 

Strategy Principles 

 
The implementation of this Strategy and achievement of its objectives will be underpinned 
by the following principles: 

 
 
 
▪ Early Intervention and Prevention – the foundation for the effectiveness of the strategy 

as part of a public health approach to violence 

▪ A whole system response – recognition of the different and distinct elements and 

responses required to meet needs of survivors for all forms of violence against women, 

sexual violence and domestic abuse 

▪ Supporting and Safeguarding - ensuring that all individuals who are safeguarded from 

violence and abuse, receive an efficient, effective and coordinated response and are 

supported to access a range of services to meet their needs 

▪ Survivor Engagement – where survivors are involved, heard and are central to why we 

are making the changes needed 

▪ A commitment to Co-production - solution focused approaches where people are given 

equal status and are meaningfully involved at all stages 

▪ Shared Learning - promoting a culture of continuous improvement, reflection and review 

to improve outcomes for victims and survivors 

▪ Equality – a positive approach to diversity, ensuring this Strategy is responsive to all; as 

well as equally accessible provision across the region to meet needs 

▪ Leadership - a need to ensure regional to local continuum, accountability and clarity of 

direction 

Tudalen 50



 

35 

 

Multi-Agency Working, Partnerships and Collaboration 

 

Collaborative work in relation to VAWDASV is often focused on multi-agency fora which bring 

organisations together to support and case manage those at risk of harm or abuse, as well as 

those who are at risk, or are perpetrating abuse or harm. The region has benefited from 

strong collaboration and partnership working arrangements for many years. Across the 

region, partners are committed to tackling VAWDASV and as such, there is commitment at 

strategic leadership level and operationally to drive forward work plans, progress and enable 

effectiveness in the response to VAWDASV and delivery of services. In the implementation of 

this Strategy, collaboration, partnership arrangements and multi-agency working will 

continue to include the following, to improve services for victims and survivors: 

 

▪ Representation within the regional governance structure and arrangements from all 

Relevant Authorities and public bodies; devolved and non-devolved 

▪ Commitment by all partners at a strategic level to ensure resources are utilised according 

to the needs of the local communities  

▪ Supporting innovative practices and ideas to provide a complete package of support for 

those who need it 

▪ Acknowledging and further facilitating the expertise and knowledge that the specialist 

services and sector brings  

 
Violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence impacts upon all services, not 

least adult and children’s social services, housing, criminal justice, education, the police, 

health services, and voluntary and community organisations. This strategy will further enable 

a coordinated community response within Gwent to reduce the prevalence and impact of 

violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual violence and increase the awareness and 

ability to act swiftly and effectively within communities and professionals. Specifically, 

collaboration will support mechanisms to remain dynamic, continuously enabling seamless 

and integrated provisions, for example: 

 

Police and Office for Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) 

Strategically, collaboration will focus on alignment of strategies to achieve greater impact and 

lobbying Relevant Authorities and wider partners in improving their response to VAWDASV 

using data and trend information to influence and attract commitment. It will also support 

joint funding and commissioning arrangements supporting value for money processes and 

avoiding duplication of services. Operationally, multi-agency working will facilitate links 

between the Public Protection Unit, Rape and Serious Sexual Assault, Management of Serious 

or Violent Offenders (MOSOVO) and Domestic Abuse and Safeguarding Team to support 

information sharing, risk assessment approaches and effective pathways for those requiring 

support for VAWDASV. 

 

Tudalen 51



 

36 

 

One of the historic challenges of the region has always been the difficulty of defining and 

agreeing across partners and agencies, the definition or meaning of early intervention and 

prevention. A shared understanding of prevention is required across the sector to properly 

determine where and how partners, services and implementation of this Strategy fits within 

the prevention of VAWDASV agenda. The Violence Prevention Unit (VPU) adopts a public  

health lens across three tiers of intervention that supports a systematic, whole society 

approach to the prevention of VAWDASV. Therefore, this Strategy will hold alignment with 

this approach and interpretation of prevention as follows: 

 

 

 
 

     Source: Violence Prevention Unit website 

 
 
National Programmes 

 
There are also national programmes in existence that further support collaboration across the 

region and strengthen partnership working for on-going contribution to achieving the aims of 

the Act: 

 
Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) 
Preventing ACEs and breaking generational cycles of ACEs can have significant benefits for 

individuals and families as well as wider communities. This Strategy will support the focus and 

emphasis of mitigating and preventing ACEs. This will be achieved through partnership 

working structures that support learning and commitment that enables partners to become 

more ACE informed in their responses to VAWDASV.  

 

 

 

Tudalen 52



 

37 

 

Violence Prevention Unit (VPU) 
The VPU in Wales works with partners and service providers to deliver programmes and 

projects that ensure violence prevention activity in Wales is effective and sustainable. The 

VPU take a public health approach to preventing violence, seeking to understand the causes 

of violence based on evidence and using this evidence to develop interventions focused on 

the underlying causes of violence. As the VPU also evaluate these interventions before they 

consider scaling up each one to help more people and communities across Wales, they 

support the capacity building required to develop a whole system response to the prevention 

of violence.  

 

Criminal Justice in Wales Remote Evidence Sites (RES) 

The region benefits from one Remote Evidence Site that supports alternative settings for 

victims of VAWDASV, including children, to give evidence to Magistrates and Crown Court 

hearings. Under the partnership arrangements of the Local Criminal Justice Board (LCJB), 

VAWDASV partners will implement the national RES Protocol to support the operational 

processes’, principles and responsibilities to continue enabling survivors of VAWDASV to 

access justice and achieve best evidence. 

 
Operation Encompass 
Operation Encompass is a police and education early information safeguarding partnership 

enabling schools to offer immediate support to children experiencing domestic abuse. 

Operation Encompass ensures that there is a simple telephone call or notification to a school’s 

trained Designated Safeguarding Lead /Officer prior to the start of the next school day after 

an incident of police attended domestic abuse where there are children related to either of 

the adult parties involved. This sharing of information enables appropriate support to be 

given, dependent upon the needs and wishes of the child. 

 

Children are negatively impacted by experiencing domestic abuse and without early 

intervention and support this negative impact can last through a child’s life course.  Domestic 

abuse can impact upon social, psychological, physical, emotional and behavioural outcomes 

with an often-negative impact upon a child’s academic success. This Strategy will continue to 

support Operation Encompass aims across Gwent, by directly connecting police and schools, 

to: 

 

▪ secure better outcomes for children 

▪ enable schools to better understand the impact living with domestic abuse has upon 

children 

▪ help schools to better understand a child’s lived experience and to therefore be able to 

support and nurture each child, making a child’s day better and giving them a better 

tomorrow 

Tudalen 53



 

38 

 

Governance Arrangements  
 

Strong leadership is required to embed violence against women, domestic abuse and sexual 

violence as “everyone’s business” that requires all areas of public policy to address. 

Subsequently, ownership of this Strategy must sit at the highest level to secure robust 

strategic buy in from partners and ensure a significant contribution to shape and improve the 

delivery of services for those affected. The direction and oversight of this Strategy sits within 

the structure outlined below. However, in progressing the actions under Fundamental 2 

(regional structures reform), the governance for VAWDASV will continue to evolve beyond 

the arrangements below to intersect with Community Safety, Substance use, Safeguarding, 

Criminal Justice and Gwent Public Services Board structures to achieve a strong public service 

approach.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 54



 

39 

 

Gwent Regional VAWDASV Governance and Reporting Structures 

 

 

 
 

 

 

T
udalen 55



 

40 

 

VAWDASV Board  

The VAWDASV Board will hold representation of Relevant Authorities and statutory bodies 

directly responsible for upholding and implementing the statutory obligations and guidance 

under the VAWDASV Act.  Collectively, members of the Board will ensure that the relevant 

functions of the Act are upheld across the region, ensuring the need to remove or minimise 

any factors which increase the risk of violence against women and girls, or exacerbate the 

impact of such violence on victims. A key role of the Board will be the implementation of the 

Strategy, which is a statutory requirement placed on Local Authorities and Local Health 

Boards under Section 5 the Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence 

(Wales) Act 2015.  

 

In recognition that effective implementation of the Act and its statutory guidance must, by 

necessity, involve all Relevant Authorities, the membership of the Board will include 

representation from the five Gwent local authorities, Aneurin Bevan University Health Board, 

South Wales Fire and Rescue Service and Welsh Ambulance Service (as an NHS Trust). Local 

authority representation will include social care, education, community safety, safeguarding, 

substance use and housing. To enable whole system change and support a public health 

approach, senior leaders from VAWDASV related statutory bodies (i.e., Police, Probation and 

Office for Police and Crime Commissioner) will also hold Board membership. 

 

Linked to the regional reforms, it is anticipated that the VAWDASV Board will become 

accountable to the Gwent Public Services Board.   

 

VAWDASV Strategic Delivery Group  

The VAWDASV Strategic Delivery Group (SDG) will be the key driver in the delivery of this 

Strategy and the implementation of the annual delivery plans. As a senior group, the SDG will 

directly coordinate the work of the subgroups that report to it and oversee the progress and 

outputs of the relevant work plans across the region. SDG membership will consist of senior 

managers across Relevant Authorities, specialist and third sector and public bodies who will 

have the ability to raise any issues, contribute to discussion (offering challenge where 

appropriate), ensure dissemination of information, commit to partnership working and 

collaboration and hold authority and decision-making powers to act upon requirements of 

their individual organisation.  

 

Commissioning Group 

The Commissioning Group will be an integral function to the long-term and sustainable 

commissioning of high quality, collaborative services in the prevention, protection and 

support for victims affected by VAWDASV. The Commissioning Group will comprise of multi-

sector representation where VAWDASV is present (e.g., social care, health, preventative 

services, substance use). The purpose of the Commissioning Group will be twofold: 

 

Tudalen 56



 

41 

 

1. To collectively plan for the design and delivery of sustainable VAWDASV services across 

the region, embedding the Commissioning of VAWDASV Services in Wales Statutory 

Guidance15 

2. Decision making in respect of grant funding and allocation of grants providing to the 

region by Welsh Government. 

 

The Commissioning Group will typically report into the VAWDASV Board but will have close 

links with SDG and the subgroups as these will inform the evidence-base and provide the work 

direction for the Commissioning Group. 

 

Subgroups 

 

Acting as enablers to this Strategy and reporting to the VAWDASV Strategic Delivery Group 

will be several subgroups. These subgroups will exist for the duration of this Strategy with 

their workstreams dictated by the Focus Areas and subsequent annual implementation plan. 

Across the three-year period, there will be flexibility to review purpose and/or change the 

considerations of subgroups to remain dynamic in their focus but as a brief overview, 

subgroups parameters will cover: 

 

Children & Young People – whole system approaches to supporting children and young 

people affected by VAWDASV, whole system approaches to addressing abusive behaviours 

and perpetration by children and young people and development of a regional ‘Knowledge 

Hub’; capturing best practice, gaps in delivery and areas for influencing regional policy 

considerations  

 

Multiple or Co-occurring Needs – identifying and addressing the gaps to meet the needs of 

those that experience multiple barriers to accessing services. As a minimum, this subgroup 

will have representation from health, substance use, housing and third sector providers  

 

Tackling Perpetration – providing the structure, focus and direction for identifying and 

disrupting perpetration and understanding ‘what works’ with perpetrators 

 

Minority Ethnic and Protected Communities – to improve the recognition, reporting and 

response to VAWDASV in relation to minority ethnic groups and protected characteristics 

(e.g., honour-based abuse, disability) to strengthen multi agency response as well as providing 

scrutiny and challenge to embed equality, diversity, and inclusion in services across the region 

 

Campaigns, Communication & Engagement – the development, planning and 

implementation of campaigns, awareness raising and engagement of the public on VAWDASV  

 
15 statutory-guidance-for-the-commissioning-of-vawdasv-services-in-wales.pdf (gov.wales) 

Tudalen 57

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-05/statutory-guidance-for-the-commissioning-of-vawdasv-services-in-wales.pdf


 

42 

 

Whole Education Approach – holding oversight of the regional response to the Whole 

Education Approach Guidance from Welsh Government, ensuring the recommend elements 

are considered and monitored as well as co-working with the Children & Young People 

Subgroup to address national areas of concern around children and young people (e.g., peer 

on peer sexual abuse and harmful sexual behaviours16) 

 

Training – holding the oversight of the National Training Framework in Gwent, advising and 

arranging training plans and assessing need and solutions for Specialist Syllabus training 

requirements 

 

In addition to the above subgroups, the regional structure will also include a: 

 

Domestic Homicide Review (DHR) Planning Group – taking learning from DHR findings and 

looking at what information and at what level needs to be disseminated, how and to whom 

in light of the review and developing an action plan to implement this. In the context of 

changes afoot with the introduction of the Single Unified Safeguarding Review (SUSR), this 

group will also consider how the learning can be shared with the Wales Safeguarding 

Repository for the learning to be incorporated beyond the region 

 

Communities of Practice forum – a new, more focused way of working, providing 

opportunities for Practitioner’s to build confidence, skills and knowledge, collaborate and 

network across the sector. Communities of Practice will support engagement with providers, 

survivors, voices from seldom heard communities and experts to share experiences, problem 

solve and enable better visibility of and access to available support; ultimately facilitating a 

more joined-up experience to deliver prevention, protection and support for VAWDASV 

within the community 

 

 
16 https://www.estyn.gov.wales/thematic-report/we-dont-tell-our-teachers-experiences-peer-peer-sexual-
harassment-among-secondary  

Tudalen 58

https://www.estyn.gov.wales/thematic-report/we-dont-tell-our-teachers-experiences-peer-peer-sexual-harassment-among-secondary
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/thematic-report/we-dont-tell-our-teachers-experiences-peer-peer-sexual-harassment-among-secondary


 

43 

 

Strategic Plan  
 

The Strategic Plan below outlines how the Fundamentals and Focus Areas will be prioritised across the region for the next three years. A Delivery 

Plan will be produced on an annual basis to reflect the actions required, expertise needed and establish how progress will be measured to achieve 

the goals under each year of the Strategic Plan. 

 

Fundamentals 

 

 
Goals 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Implementation of the 
Domestic Abuse Act 

2021 (Section 3) 

Undertake an Evidence-Based Needs Assessment on 
Children and Young People impact by VAWDASV 

Collaborative Commissioning 
of Services to Address Gaps 

Collaborative Commissioning of Services to 
Address Gaps 

Raising Awareness of Services, Pathways of Support 
and Interventions for Children and Young People 
Impacted by VAWDASV  

Reviewing the Role of Public Services for 
Further Development of Partnership 
Working to Meet the Needs of Children and 
Young People 

Regional Structures 
Reform  

Embedding VAWDASV into Governance Arrangements 
in Community Safety   

Reviewing Structures for Partnership Delivery of Sustainable Services 
Embedding VAWDASV into Governance Arrangements 
in Gwent Public Services Board    

Supporting the implementation of the Single Unified Safeguarding Review (SUSR) 

Infrastructure for 
Regional Services and 

Delivery 

Establishing ‘Benchmark’ Needs Assessments that 
Outline Prevalence, Scale, Good Practice and Resource 
Deficits 

Reviewing and Updating Needs Assessments to Support ‘Live’ Priorities  

Establishing a VAWDASV Commissioning Group  
Focus on Maintaining, Sustaining 
and Developing Services 

Planning and Methodology for Whole 
System Approach VAWDASV Services 

T
udalen 59



 

44 

 

Focus Areas 

 

Goals 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Tackling Perpetration 
Undertaking a Regional Needs Assessment That Will Inform a Whole System 
Approach to Tackling Perpetration   

Planning Solutions in Response to Regional Needs 
Assessment  

Commissioning of Perpetrator Programmes and 
Interventions  

Supporting Identification and Response to 
Perpetration Identified in Education Based Settings 

Children and Young 
People 

Empowering and Educating Young People to Support VAWDASV Prevention and Early Intervention  

Developing a ‘Knowledge Hub’ of Evidence-Based Programmes and 
Interventions for Children and Young People 

Developing a ‘Knowledge Hub’ of Evidence-Based 
Programmes and Interventions for Children and 
Young People 

Commissioning of Programmes and Interventions for 
Children and Young People 

Developing a Framework for Participation and Child/Young Person Voice for 
the Planning and Delivery of Services 

Influencing and Planning for Sustainable Funding of 
Children/Young Person Programmes and Interventions 

Misogyny and Harassment 

Delivering Campaign and Communication Activities that Raise Awareness of Misogyny and Harassment  

 
Supporting Identification and Reporting of Workplace Harassment 
 

 
Supporting Identification and Reporting of Abuse of Power, Position or Perpetration by Public Bodies  
 

Multiple or Co-Occurring 
Needs 

Developing Collaboration Arrangements between Agencies and Providers to 
Establish and Support Cross Specialism Trained Practitioners  

Establishing Pathways and Resources to Support 
Solution Focused Approaches to Challenges that 
Exist 

Influencing and Planning for Continued Sustainability 
of Collaboration Support Services 

 
Understanding Trauma Informed Approaches Required to Appropriately Respond to VAWDASV Issues Where There are Co-existing Support Needs 
 

T
udalen 60



 

45 

 

Annex A: Definitions and Glossary  

 
Definitions  

 
Violence Against Women 
Violence against women is defined by the United Nations and others as acts of violence which 
are suffered disproportionally by women that results in, or is likely to result in, physical, sexual 
or mental harm or suffering to women, including threats of such acts, coercion or arbitrary 
deprivation of liberty, whether occurring in public or in private life. Violence against women 
shall be understood to encompass but not be limited to: 
 

a) Physical, sexual and psychological violence occurring in the family, including battering, 
sexual abuse of female children in the household, dowry-related violence, marital rape, 
female genital mutilation and other traditional practices harmful to women, non-spousal 
violence and violence related to exploitation; 

b) Physical, sexual and psychological violence occurring within the general community, 
including rape, sexual abuse, sexual harassment and intimidation at work, in educational 
institutions and elsewhere, trafficking in women and forced prostitution; 

c) Physical, sexual and psychological violence perpetrated or condoned by the State, 
wherever it occurs. 

 
Domestic Abuse 
The UK Government definition of domestic abuse is ‘any incident or pattern of incidents of 
controlling, coercive, threatening behaviour, violence or abuse between those aged 16 or 
over who are, or have been, intimate partners or family members regardless of gender or 
sexuality.’ 
 
Sexual Violence 
Sexual violence is any unwanted sexual act or activity. According to the Violence against 
Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act 2015 sexual violence means sexual 
exploitation, sexual harassment, or threats of violence of a sexual nature. The act further 
defines sexual exploitation as something that is done to or in respect of a person which 
warrants an offence under Part 1 of the Sexual Offences Act 2003. This includes the following 
definitions: 
 
a) Rape - when a person intentionally penetrates the vagina, anus or mouth of another 

person with his penis when that other person does not consent to the penetration, and/or 
he does not reasonably believe that the other person consents. 

b) Assault by penetration - the intentional sexual penetration of the vagina or anus of 
another person with a part of the person’s body or anything else, when that other person 
does not consent to the penetration, and/or he does not reasonably believe that the other 
person consents. 

c) Sexual assault - a person intentionally touching another person sexually in a manner to 
which the other person does not consent to the touching, and/or the person does not 
reasonably believe that the other person consents. 

Tudalen 61



 

46 

 

d) Child sex offences - rape or any sexual activity with a child, familial child sex offences and 
meeting a child following sexual grooming. 

 
Sexual Harassment 
The legal definition of sexual harassment is when someone carries out unwanted sexual 
behaviour towards another person that makes them feel upset, scared, offended or 
humiliated. It is also when someone carries out this behaviour with the intention of making 
someone else feel that way.  
 
Harassment  
Harassment is used to cover the 'causing alarm or distress' offences under section 2 of the 
Protection from Harassment Act 1997 and 'putting people in fear of violence'.  
 
Forced Marriage 
Forcing a person (whether by physical force or coercion by threats or other psychological 
means) to enter into a religious or civil ceremony of marriage (whether or not legally binding). 
The pressure put on people to marry against their will can be physical (including threats, 
actual physical violence and sexual violence) or emotional and psychological (for example, 
when someone is made to feel like they’re bringing shame on their family). 
 
Honour Based Abuse (HBA) 
Honour-based abuse is a crime or incident committed to protect or defend the 'honour' of a 
family or community. 
 
Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) 
FGM also known as female circumcision or female genital cutting, is defined by the World 
Health Organisation (WHO) as "all procedures involving partial or total removal of the 
external female genitalia or other injury to the female genital organs for non-medical 
reasons". Female genital mutilation is an act that is an offence under sections 1, 2 or 3 of the 
Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003. 
 
Gender Based Violence 
Gender-based Violence is violence, threats of violence or harassment arising directly or 
indirectly from values, beliefs or customs relating to gender or sexual orientation. 

 
Glossary 

 
Ask and Act 
A process of targeted enquiry across the Welsh Public Service in relation to Violence against 
Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence. 

 
BME 
Black and Minority Ethnic or Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic is the terminology used to 
describe people of non-white descent. 

 

Tudalen 62



 

47 

 

Incel17 
Incel is short for Involuntary Celibate. People who define themselves as incels say they cannot 
get a sex life despite the fact they want to be in a relationship. 
 
Independent Domestic Violence Adviser (IDVA)  
Trained specialist worker who provides short to medium-term casework support for high-risk 
victims of domestic abuse.  
 
Independent Sexual Violence Adviser (ISVA) 
Trained specialist worker who provides support to victims/survivors of rape and sexual 
assault. 

 
MARAC 
A MARAC is a meeting where information is shared on the highest risk domestic abuse cases 
between representatives of local police, health, child protection, housing practitioners, 
Independent Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVAs), probation and other specialists from the 
statutory and voluntary sectors. 
 
Victim/Survivor 
The term used to describe the person who is potentially experiencing Violence against 
Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence. Other terms encompassed may include; 
‘service user’ ‘client’ and ‘patient’ and reflect the terms used by different organisations to 
define their relationship to the person at risk. In practical terms it is suggested that the person 
experiencing these issues selects the term they prefer, where a term is required. 
 
Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Specialist Sector 
Third sector organisations whose core business is Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse 
and Sexual Violence. 
 
 
 
 

 
17 Incels: Inside a dark world of online hate - BBC News 

Tudalen 63

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/blogs-trending-44053828?adlt=strict


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn



Scrutiny Report 
Performance Scrutiny Committee – 
Partnerships 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  6th December 2023 
 
Subject Scrutiny Adviser Report 
 
Author  Scrutiny Adviser 
 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Role 
 

Neil Barnett (Scrutiny Adviser) Present the Committee with the Scrutiny Adviser Report for 
discussion and update the Committee on any changes. 

 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 
 

 
 
2 Context 
 

Background  
2.1 The purpose of a forward work programme is to help ensure Councillors achieve organisation 

and focus in the undertaking of enquiries through the Overview and Scrutiny function.  Effective 

Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked to:

1. Committee’s Work Programme:
Consider the Committee’s Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 1):

• Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the next 
Committee meeting?

• Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider the topics?
• Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?

2. Action Plan
Consider the Actions from previous meetings (Appendix 2):

• Note the responses for the actions;
• Determine if any further information / action is required;
• Agree to receive an update on outstanding issues at the next meeting.

Tudalen 65

Eitem Agenda 6



work programming is essential to ensure that the work of Overview and Scrutiny makes a positive 
impact upon the Council’s delivery of services. 

 
2.2 Further information about the work programming process, including the procedures for referring 

new business to the programme, can be found in our Scrutiny Handbook on the Council’s 
Scrutiny webpages (www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny). 

 
2.3 The Centre for Public Scrutiny’s Good Scrutiny Guide recognises the importance of the forward 

work programme.  In order to ‘lead and own the process’, it states that Councillors should have 
ownership of their Committee’s work programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and 
evaluating it.  The Good Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny 
workload should be co-ordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it 
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken in a timely 
and well-planned manner. 

  
Action Sheet from Previous Meetings 
 
2.4 Attached at Appendix 2 is the Action Sheet from the Committee meetings.  The updated 

completed actions are included in the table.   
 
2.5 Any actions that do not have a response will be included on the Action Sheet at the next meeting 

to ensure that the Committee can keep track of outstanding actions.  
 
 
3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 The following information is attached: 
 
  Appendix 1: The Committee’s Forward Work Programme Update; 
 Appendix 2: Action Sheet from Previous Meetings. 
  
 
   
4. Suggested Areas of Focus 
 
 Role of the Committee 
 
  

 

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:

• Forward Work Programme Update - Appendix 1
Consider:

o Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the 
next Committee meeting?

o Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider 
the topics?

o Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?

• Action Sheet from Previous Meetings - Appendix 2
o Consider the responses to the actions from the meeting;
o Are you satisfied that you have received the necessary information?
o Are there any further issues arising from the responses that you would like to 

raise?
For the actions that do not have responses – these actions will be rolled over to the next 
meeting and reported back to the Committee.

Tudalen 66

http://www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny


Section B – Supporting Information 
5. Links to Council Policies and Priorities  

 
  5.1 Having proper work programming procedures in place ensures that the work of Overview and 

Scrutiny makes a positive impact upon the Council’s delivery of services, contributes to the delivery 
of corporate objectives, and ensures that work can be undertaken in a timely and well-planned 
manner.   

 
5.2    This report relates to the Committee’s Work Programme, Actions from Committee’s and  

Information Reports that support the achievement of the Scrutiny Committee, in accordance with  
the Law and Regulation Service Plan, Objectives, Actions and Measures and the Wellbeing 
objectives.  

 
 
 
 
6 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act  
 
6.1 The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 which came into force in April 2016 sets the 

context for the move towards long term planning of services.   
 

6.2 General questions 
• How is this area / policy affected by the new legislation?   
• How will this decision / policy / proposal impact upon future generations?  What is the long 

term impact?   
• What evidence is provided to demonstrate WFGA has been / is being considered?   
• Evidence from Community Profiles / other data?  
• Evidence of links to Wellbeing Assessment / Objectives / Plan? 

 
6.3 Wellbeing Goals 

• How are the Wellbeing goals reflected in the policy / proposal / action? 
o A prosperous Wales 
o A resilient Wales 
o A healthier Wales 
o A more equal Wales 
o A Wales of cohesive communities 
o A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
o A globally responsible Wales 

 
6.4 Sustainable Development Principles 

• Does the report / proposal demonstrate how as an authority we are working in accordance 
with the sustainable development principles from the act when planning services? 
o Long Term 

The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability to 
also meet long-term needs 

o Prevention 
How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may help public bodies meet 
their objectives 

o Integration 
Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may impact upon each of the 
well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies 

o Collaboration 

Tudalen 67



Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts of the body itself) that 
could help the body to meet its well-being objectives 

o Involvement 
The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals, 
and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the body serves. 

 
7 Background Papers 
 

• The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)  
• Corporate Plan 2022-2027 

 
 
Report Completed: 6th December 2023 

Tudalen 68

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s23056/08ii%20Draft%20-%20Corporate%20Plan%202022-27%20v1.4.pdf?LLL=0


Appendix 1 
Performance Scrutiny Committee – Partnerships   

– Forward Work Programme Update  
 
 

Wednesday, 7 February 2024 at 5pm 

Topic Information Required / Committee’s Role Potential Invitees 
 

Area 
Planning 
Board 
(Substance 
Misuse)  

 
Performance Scrutiny – Effectiveness of 
Partnership Arrangements 
 

To provide an overview of the role and function 
of the Gwent Area Planning Board (Substance 
Misuse) and work of the APB commissioning 
team.   
 

 
Head of Prevention and Inclusion;  
 
Substance Misuse Team Manager. 

 
Sencom 
Regional 
Support 
Services for 
Schools 
 

 
Performance Scrutiny – Effectiveness of 
Partnership Arrangements 
 

To provide an overview of the role and function 
of the Sencom Regional Support Services for 
Schools 
 
 

 
Chief Education Officer 

 

Wednesday, 8 March 2024 at 5pm 

Topic Information Required / Committee’s Role Invitees 
 
Safer Newport 
Update 

 
Performance Scrutiny – Effectiveness of 
Partnership Arrangements 
 
Update on the work of Safer Newport, 
Newport’s Community Safety Partnership, on 
partnership working to improve the safety of 
all Newport’s communities. 
 

 
Strategic Director – Transformation 
and Corporate; 
 
Policy and Partnership Manager; 
 
Community Safety Partners. 

 
Education 
Achievement 
Service - Value 
for Money 2023-
24 
 

 
Performance Scrutiny of the EAS 
Partnership  - through Annual Monitoring of 
the local authorities Financial contribution to 
EAS and also the through consideration of the 
value for money model, and its potential use / 
implications for scrutiny of other partnerships 
 

 
Chief Education Officer; 
 
Deputy Chief Education Officer; 
 
EAS Managing Director; 
 
EAS Principal School Improvement 
Partner 
 

 

Tudalen 69



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn



APPENDIX 1 

 
 

Performance Scrutiny Committee – Partnerships 
 

ACTION SHEET – 4th October 2023 
 
 

 Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

1 One Newport 
Wellbeing Plan Final 
Report 

Members request if Natural Resource Wales 
could produce an information report about 
Flood Risk, including information about which 
areas of Newport are at risk of flooding and 
future projections of flooding. 

Scrutiny / One 
Newport 
Partnership 

ONGOING – Information sent to One 
Newport Partnership on 9th September 
2023. 

 
 

ACTION SHEET – 8th November 2023 
 

 Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

 
1 

 
Norse Joint Venture 
Partnership - Strategy 
and Performance 
Review 

 
The Committee considered the report of the 
Norse Joint Venture Partnership 

 
Scrutiny / 
Norse 
Partnership 

 
 

ACTIONED – Comments from the 
Committee forwarded to the partnership 
on 9th November 2023.  
 

 
1 

 
Norse Joint Venture 
Partnership - Strategy 
and Performance 
Review 

 
The Committee requested to receive 
additional equality data, including information 
on ages, ethnic groups, and workforce 
composition within the organisation.  

 
Scrutiny / 
Norse 
Partnership 

COMPLETED – Information from Head of 
People, Policy and Transformation 
forwarded to the Committee on 9th 
November 2023.  
 

 
1 

 
Norse Joint Venture 
Partnership - Strategy 

 
Members sought clarification regarding the 
National TOM's Wales reference NTW1 - the 

Scrutiny / 
Norse 
Partnership 

COMPLETED – Response from Head of 
People, Policy and Transformation 

T
udalen 71



APPENDIX 1 

 
 

and Performance 
Review 

number of direct employees (FTE) hired or 
retained within the NCC Boundary. While it 
was stated that 80% of employees were 
Newport residents, Members discussed that 
the figure would actually be less than half 
(147 out of 346), approximately 43%. 
Members also requested an updated print 
version reflecting the correct amount  

 forwarded to the Committee on 16th 

November 2023.  
 

 
2 

 
Safer Newport Draft 
Strategic Needs 
Assessment 2023 

 
The Committee considered the report of the 
Safer Newport Draft Strategic Needs 
Assessment 2023 

 
Scrutiny / 
Norse 
Partnership  

COMPLETED – Information from Head of 
People, Policy and Transformation 
forwarded to the Committee on 13th 

November 2023.  
 

 
2 

 
Safer Newport Draft 
Strategic Needs 
Assessment 2023 

 
The Committee requested to receive the 
Police report that was conducted about the 
Cleveland-area city, which offers a 
comparison to Newport. 
 

 
Scrutiny / 
Gwent Police 

COMPLETED – Response from Gwent 
Police forwarded to the Committee on 
23rd November 2023.  
 

 
2 

 
Safer Newport Draft 
Strategic Needs 
Assessment 2023 

 
Members requested the translation of the 
consultation into additional languages, such 
as Urdu and Arabic. They also enquired 
about the plans to engage with harder-to-
reach populations in Newport and requested 
that further consideration be given to 
meaningful engagement with those 
communities. 

 
Scrutiny / 
Partnership 
Team 

 
 

COMPLETED – Response from the 
Partnership Team forwarded to the 
Committee on 23rd November 2023.  
 

 

T
udalen 72


	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Diwethaf
	4 Strategaeth Ranbarthol Trais yn erbyn Menywod, Cam-drin Domestig a Thrais Rhywiol (VAWDASV) 2023-2027
	Performance Scrutiny Committee - Partnerships
	Subject	Violence against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (VAWDASV) Regional Strategy 2023-2027

	Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
	2	Context
	3	Information Submitted to the Committee
	4.	Suggested Areas of Focus
	5	Supporting Information
	6	Links to Council Policies and Priorities
	7	Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act
	8.	Background Papers

	Gwent Regional VAWDASV Strategy 2023-2027

	6 Adroddiad Cynghorydd Craffu
	Performance Scrutiny Committee – Partnerships
	Subject	Scrutiny Adviser Report

	Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
	3	Information Submitted to the Committee
	5.	Links to Council Policies and Priorities
	6	Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act
	7	Background Papers

	Item 7A- Appx 1 - FWP Update
	Item 7b - Actions Sheet v3


